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Students walk across the Centennial Campus bridge.
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MISSION
STATEMENT

The mission of North Carolina State University is to serve its students and the 

people of North Carolina as a doctoral/ research-extensive, land-grant university. 

Through the active integration of teaching, research, extension, and engagement, 

North Carolina State University creates an innovative learning environment 

that stresses mastery of fundamentals, intellectual discipline, creativity, problem 

solving, and responsibility. Enhancing its historic strengths in agriculture, science, 

and engineering with a commitment to excellence in a comprehensive range of 

academic disciplines, North Carolina State University provides leadership for 

intellectual, cultural, social, economic, and technological development within the 

state, the nation, and the world.
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Throughout the history of NC State, the university has played an important role in the development of 
North Carolina.  This year has certainly presented a time of challenge for NC State because of economic 
uncertainty and change in leadership.  However, the university has held true to its unique land-grant mission 
to serve our state in the many ways essential for the future well-being of our people.  

Our alumni, students, faculty and staff are a testament to the excellence that characterizes NC State.  
Robert Gibbs, a 1992 graduate in Political Science, became President Barak Obama’s press secretary, and 
we celebrated with alumnus Cullen Jones last summer as he won an Olympic gold medal in Beijing for his 
performance on the U.S. Men’s Swim Team.   Our students continue to earn prestigious scholarships—
one was selected to be a Gates-Cambridge scholar this year —and our faculty have taken on important 
leadership positions in their respective disciplines.

The end of 2008 heralded the completion of our higher education bond build-out.  NC State received more 
than $468 million as part of the bond package, financing four dozen construction projects and facilities 
upgrades on campus.  In May, the city of Raleigh began the $9.92 million Hillsborough Street Revitalization, 
which will provide a much-needed facelift to NC State’s main thoroughfare.  

NC State also launched a collaborative Engineering Research Center (ERC), funded by a five-year, $18.5 
million grant from the National Science Foundation.  The FREEDM Center, as it is called, will revolutionize 
the nation’s power grid.  Only five ERC’s were selected in the past year, and of the eight finalists, three were 
from NC State.  This commitment to the efficient production and distribution of energy extends across the 
university, and prompted The Princeton Review to call NC State one of the nation’s “green” campuses.

Even in the midst of economic recession, NC State has identified creative strategies to provide quality 
services and programs for our students and the people of North Carolina.  In fact, The Princeton Review 
named NC State a top-ten “best value” based on quality and cost of education.

NC State has a responsibility to enhance the economic vitality of our state.  Launched in November, the 
Entrepreneurship Initiative provides a truly different way of teaching and learning by exposing students 
to experiential learning situations that turn creative concepts into marketable products.  We also are 
making higher education an active player in the outside world by being an incubator for innovation and 
business.  In fact, the university holds more than 600 U.S. patents and is working to move the underlying 
intellectual property into the market through creation of new businesses and partnerships with the existing 
businesses.  

Over the years, I have watched NC State grow in size, scope and quality.  Today, more than ever, the university 
is of pivotal importance to our state and our citizens.  I am proud to have this opportunity to again be a part 
of this truly distinguished university.  

Jim Woodward, Chancellor
NC State University

FROM THE CH A NCELLOR
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Jim Woodward, Chancellor
NC State University

LET TER OF TR A NSMIT TA L

Charles D. Leffler
Vice Chancellor for Finance and Business
NC State University

To Chancellor Woodward, Members of the Board of Trustees and Friends of North Carolina State 
University:

The Office of Finance and Business is pleased to present the 2009 Annual Financial Report.  As of June 30, 
2009, NC State’s financial assets were $1.99 billion with net assets of $1.43 billion.  Due to the economic 
recession and world wide financial market crisis, assets dropped $15.8 million this year as state operating 
appropriations and the valuation of our investment portfolios were negatively affected.  State appropriations 
of $39.0 million were returned to the state and our investment program incurred $21.1 million in losses.  
While these events were appropriately managed to mitigate their effect on the operations of the University, 
it will take time to recover.  NC State’s capital program, however, continued to grow due to available capital 
reserves and capital financing.  Since the start of NC State’s building program in fiscal year 2002, capital 
assets, net of related debt, have increased from $399 million to $1.11 billion.    

During the 2009 fiscal year, revenues and expenses (operating and non-operating) were $1.09 billion and $1.14 
billion respectively.  Operating revenues in most areas continued to rise, including student tuition and fees 
and auxiliary charges, contracts and grants, and rental and royalty income.  This revenue growth, however, 
was more than offset by required reductions in state appropriations and investment losses, both resulting 
from the economic recession.   Expense growth occurred as a result of legislative increases approved in 2008 
for salaries and benefits but was partially offset by the mitigating actions taken to address the reduction in 
state appropriations.

The 2009 Annual Financial Report provides detailed information about the University’s financial picture.  
It is organized into three sections:  The Introductory Section includes a message from the Chancellor, this 
transmittal letter, recognition of the NCSU Board of Directors and chief executive and administrative 
officers, “NC State University at a Glance” recognizing current achievements and service results, and a 
presentation on “NC State University Financial Highlights” comparing key financial information for the 
past five years.  The Financial Statement Section provides Management’s Discussion and Analysis on the 
financial statements, a report from the Office of State Auditor, the financial statements and notes to the 
financial statements.  The Supplemental Information Section provides selected financial, statistical, and 
demographic information relating to students, endowment growth, debt coverage, and the faculty.

The University’s audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2009, are presented in the Financial 
Section.  University management is responsible for the accuracy of this information and the fairness of its 
presentation, including all disclosures.  We believe the information in this report is accurate in all material 
respects and fairly presents the University’s financial position, as well as the results of its operations for the 
year ended June 30, 2009.  The basic financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles for public colleges and universities, as defined by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board.

NC State University is a constituent institution of the seventeen campus University of North Carolina, which 
is a component unit of the State of North Carolina and an integral part of the State’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. 

Charles D. Leffler

Vice Chancellor for Finance and Business 
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Students walk to class in front of Withers and Daniels Hall.
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NC STATE
AT A GL ANCE
STUDENTS
•      Largest four-year institution in North Carolina
•      Largest number of  applications from NC students
•      33,879 students from all NC counties and 107 foreign countries                  
       (23,388 undergraduates; 7,653 graduates and professional, 2,838      
       non-degree seeking)
•      4,612 undergraduate and 2,194 graduate degrees awarded in 2008-          
       09
•      Bachelor’s degrees in 115 fields; master’s in 169 fields; PhDs in 62   
       fields; Doctor of  Veterinary Medicine
•      100+ national scholars and fellows in past five years

FACULTY & STAFF
•      2,132 teaching, research and extension faculty; 316 field faculty
•      17 members of  the National Academies
•      7th among 16 peers in NSF CAREER faculty awards over last four    
       years
•      6,087 administrative and support staff

RANKINGS
•      3th Best Overall Public University Value among public universities 
       (U.S. News & World Report, 2009)
•      5th among public colleges of  veterinary medicine
       (U.S. News & World Report, 2006)
•      6th best value among the nation’s public colleges and universities
       (Princeton Review, 2009)
•      18th best value among the nation’s colleges and universities
       (Kiplinger’s Personal Finance, 2008)
•      13 graduate programs among top 30 public universities         
       (U.S. News & World Report, 2008)
•      5th in engineering M.S. degrees and 6th in engineering                     
       doctorates awarded among 16 peers
       (Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System, 2007)
•      29th among public American research universities, 11th among      
       American public research universities without medical schools
       (The Center for Measuring University Performance, 2007)
•      Among the 25 “Most Connected Campuses” in the Nation 
       (Princeton Review, 2006)
•      18th among public university research libraries in North America
       (Association of  Research Libraries Membership Index, 2007)

EXTENSION, ENGAGEMENT & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
•     $1 in State funding for NC State generates nearly $8 in total income     
      for NC
•     1,200 employees stationed in all 100 counties and the
      Cherokee Reservation
•     13 off-campus regional research and extension centers, 9 field labo-  
       ratories, and 18 shared research stations

FINANCIALS AND PRIVATE SUPPORT
•     Total operating expenses: $1.12 billion
•     Total endowment: $464 million, including foundations (effective        
       July 1, 2009)
•     Achieve! capital campaign reached its $1 billion goal 19 months   
       early, and raised a total of  $1.3 Billion

RESEARCH
•     4th in Industry Research Funding among research universities with  
      out medical schools 
      (National Science Foundation, 2008)
•     More than 70% of  faculty engaged in sponsored research
•     Over 2,500 graduate students supported on research and teaching    
      appointments
•     There are 67 research and service centers

TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER
•     3rd in number of  partnerships per $100M in research expenditures.
      (Association of  University Technology Managers)
•     76 start-up companies representing $550M in venture capital              
      investment and 3,000 jobs in North Carolina 
•     3rd in number of  partnerships established per $100M in sponsored   
      research expenditures
      (Association of  University Technology Managers)
•     3rd in commercialization of  micro - and nanotechnology inventions
      (Small Times Media)
•     Over 650 U.S. Patents issues
•     110 products available to consumers

COLLEGES
Agriculture and Life Sciences, Design, Humanities and Social Sciences, 
Education, Physical and Mathematical Sciences, Engineering, Manage-
ment, Natural Resources, Textiles, Veterinary Medicine, The Graduate 
School, First Year College

CENTENNIAL CAMPUS
•      National model for government, business and university partner-             
       ships
•      Includes 1,120-acre Centennial Campus and the 214-acre Centen-  
       nial Biomedical Campus
•      Houses Colleges of  Textiles, Engineering, and Veterinary Medicine
•      Technology Incubator helps entrepreneurs commercialize products  
       and processes
•      Over 100 integrated corporate and government research partners,    
       and 2,200 employees
•      600-student Centennial Campus Magnet Middle School, as well as    
       the William & Ida Friday Institute for Education Innovation,   
       located on campus 

ATHLETICS
•      NCAA Division I
•      Member of  Atlantic Coast Conference
•      23 sports represented at NC State

ALUMNI
•      Over 170,000 living NC State alumni
•      Over 107,800 alumni living in North Carolina
•      Graduates pump $2.9 billion into NC economy annually
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Students walk in front of the newly completed SAS Math and Statistics building.
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2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

University Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $712.2 $797.1 $904.0 $1,012.6 $1,107.0
Restricted Nonexpendable $54.5 $60.4 $66.5 $63.0 $66.0
Restricted Expendable (1) $167.6 $166.7 $285.1 $220.6 $108.5
Unrestricted $93.9 $95.2 $116.2 $143.2 $147.5
Total Net Assets $1,028.2 $1,119.4 $1,371.8 $1,439.4 $1,429.0

Gifts
Noncapital Gifts $41.3 $42.7 $46.8 $52.0 $54.9
Capital Gifts $7.0 $5.5 $9.8 $30.0 $4.8

Contracts & Grants
Federal Contracts & Grants (2) $90.0 $95.4 $100.5 $98.1 $103.5
State and Local Contracts and Grants $33.6 $33.8 $34.4 $36.6 $36.0
Nongovernmental Contracts and Grants $48.2 $48.4 $46.5 $48.6 $48.7
Total Contracts and Grants $171.8 $177.6 $181.4 $183.3 $188.2

Appropriations and Tuition and Fees
Federal Appropriations $21.1 $20.1 $25.8 $22.2 $23.2
State Appropriations for Operations $366.6 $400.0 $430.9 $487.7 $448.8
State Appropriations for Capital Projects. $4.4 $18.3 $81.4 $38.1 $0.0
Tuition and Fees (Gross) $153.3 $162.1 $181.1 $197.1 $209.6

Foundation Support $39.2 $35.7 $43.1 $66.2 $45.2

Endowment Investments $139.7 $155.1 $173.2 $161.2 $129.6

Investment Fund Return 8.92% 9.44% 15.85% -5.75% -23.42%

Capital Assets 
Total University Capital Assets $1,342.5 $1,474.6 $1,648.0 $1,798.0 $1,947.7
Total University Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation $919.0 $1,025.7 $1,170.9 $1,279.3 $1,385.6

University Debt
Short-term Debt $2.0 $16.0 $80.0 $75.5 $20.0
Bonds Payable $222.1 $211.2 $200.7 $191.1 $253.1

Estimated  Expenses for Full-Time Students Living on Campus - N.C. Residents (dollars are in whole numbers)
Tuition and Fees $4,282 $4,353 $4,784 $5,274 $5,286
Books and Supplies $800 $800 $900 $930 $930
Room Rent (Average) $3,920 $4,183 $4,288 $4,460 $4,924
Meals (Average) $2,588 $2,668 $2,752 $2,910 $3,058
Other Personal Expenses $1,200 $1,230 $1,230 $1,230 $1,250
Transportation $500 $500 $500 $550 $580
Total $13,290 $13,734 $14,454 $15,354 $16,028

(1)  Sources for funding Restricted Expendable Net Assets include gifts, contracts and grants, unexpended capital appropriations,
      endowment income, unexpended debt proceeds, required reserves, and loan funds.

(2)  Prior year federal contracts and grants were restated to be consistent with the 2009 presentation of federal student financial aid as nonoperating grants and 
      not federal contracts and grants.  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
 For the Years ended June 30, 2005-2009
 (dollars are in millions)

NC STATE UNIVERSITY  
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Students study between classes as others head to and from class near the brickyard on a sunny Spring day.
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NORTH CAROLINA

STATE UNIVERSIT Y

M ANAGEMENT’S
DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
INTRODUCTION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the financial report provides an overview of the accompanying basic financial statements. It includes 
comparative financial analysis with discussion of significant changes from the prior year. The overview also includes information on currently 
known facts, decisions, or conditions affecting the financial affairs of the University.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

NC State University’s net assets decreased by 0.7% to $1.43 billion in fiscal year 2009.  Net assets represent the University’s equity, the assets less 
the liabilities.  This decrease was primarily the result of expending $84.0 million from  prior year capital project reserve balances and, as a result 
of the market value decline in investments, a $22.0 million decrease in endowed professorship balances.  These reductions were partially offset 
by the acquisition of capital assets net of related debt of $94.3 million.
Revenues, including the investment loss, decreased by 0.8% to $1.09 billion in fiscal year 2009.  Revenues represent amounts received or accrued 
that are either operating or nonoperating on the accompanying financial statements. This reduction was primarily the result of the economic 
recession.  As a result of the recession, the State reduced operating appropriations to the university by $39.0 million and required another $1.9 
million of capital appropriations to be returned.  In addition, investment income from market investments was significantly impacted with an 
increase to reductions to investment income of $17.5 million.   However, these decreases were partially offset by $14.3 million in federal economic 
recovery funds provided by the State and, as a result of increased enrollment and billing rates, increases of $11.1 million in tuition and fees and 
$8.1 million in sales and services. 
Operating Expenses increased by 1.8% to $1.12 billion in fiscal year 2009.  Operating expenses represent amounts paid or accrued for operating 
purposes.  By function, Instruction, Research, and Auxiliary Enterprise showed the largest increases, primarily caused by higher salaries and 
benefits expenses.  Public Service, Academic Support, and Operations and Maintenance expenses were down, driven by reduced State operating 
appropriations which resulted in less spending on supplies and materials.

USING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The University’s financial statements are used to evaluate financial position as of June 30th and the results of operations for the fiscal year then 
ended.  The Statement of Net Assets provides information relative to the evaluation of financial position.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Assets provides information relative to the evaluation of the results of operations.  Its ending net assets agree to the total net 
assets on the Statement of Net Assets.  
The financial statements also include a Statement of Cash Flows.  This statement is used to identify the University’s sources and uses of cash.  The 
ending cash on the Statement of Cash Flows agrees to the total cash reported on the Statement of Net Assets.  Also, this statement reconciles the 
net operating loss reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets to the net cash used by operating activities.
In using the financial statements, the Notes to the Financial Statements accompanying the financial statements should be read in conjunction 
with the financial statements.  The notes provide information regarding the significant accounting principles applied in the financial statements, 
authority for and associated risk of deposits and investments, detailed information on long-term liabilities, detailed information on accounts 
receivable, accounts payable, revenues and expenses, required information on pension plans and other post employment benefits, insurance 
against losses, commitments and contingencies, and accounting changes.  If necessary, the disclosures include a discussion of adjustments to 
prior periods and events subsequent to the University’s financial statement period.  Overall, these disclosures provide information to better 
understand details, risk, and uncertainty associated with amounts reported in the financial statements.
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Biomedical Campus in Kannapolis, N.C. 
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COMPARATIVE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION

Statement of net aSSetS

The Statement of Net Assets provides information regarding the University’s assets, liabilities, and net assets as of June 30, 2009. Asset and 
liability balances are classified as either current or noncurrent. Assets classified as current are those that are available to pay for current liabilities 
or current year expenditures. Liabilities classified as current are those that are due and payable in the next fiscal year. The net asset balances 
are classified as either invested in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted or unrestricted. In addition, net assets classified as restricted are 
classified as either nonexpendable or expendable. Overall, the Statement of Net Assets provides information to evaluate the financial strength of 
the University and its ability to meet current and long-term obligations.

Following is a comparative analysis on the condensed balances reported in the Statement of Net Assets as of June 30, 2009, and 2008.

   iNCreaSe/
 2009 2008 (DeCreaSe)
aSSetS
 CUrreNt aSSetS $       311,348,243  $        295,569,877   $          15,778,366  
 Capital aSSetS, Net        1,385,631,913          1,279,287,078   106,344,835
 other NoNCUrreNt aSSetS           295,007,971             432,973,969  (137,965,998)
total aSSetS        1,991,988,127          2,007,830,924  (15,842,797) 
   
liabilitieS
 CUrreNt liabilitieS           118,501,555              171,289,243    (52,787,688)
 NoNCUrreNt liabilitieS          444,524,372              397,098,210    47,426,162
total liabilitieS          563,025,927              568,387,453  (5,361,526)
   
Net aSSetS 
 iNveSteD iN Capital aSSetS,
 Net oF relateD Debt       1,106,986,595           1,012,649,706  94,336,889
 reStriCteD
  NoNexpeNDable            66,033,683               62,979,401   3,054,282
  expeNDable          108,456,576            220,658,992   (112,202,416)
 UNreStriCteD          147,485,346             143,155,372         4,329,974  
total Net aSSetS $   1,428,962,200   $     1,439,443,471  $ (10,481,271)
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Murphy Center and wolf statue outside Carter-Finley Stadium. 
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Assets totaled $1.99 billion, a decrease of $15.8 million over the prior year. This change in assets includes capital asset growth of $106.3 million, 
a decrease in other noncurrent assets of $138.0 million, and an increase in current assets of $15.8 million.
The capital asset growth is due to construction funding from new capital grants and gifts, new capital financing and prior year capital improvement 
reserves.  NC State received capital grants of $28.0 million in 2009, primarily from the State’s higher education bond/certificates of participation 
(COPs) program, $21.3 million in proceeds from capital financing, and $4.8 million in capital gifts in fiscal year 2009. 
Other noncurrent assets decreased by $138.0 million.  The primary factors for this decrease was the decline in market values of investments 
resulting in endowment investments to decline by $31.6 million and other investments to decline by $43.6 million.  In addition, $49.6 million 
of noncurrent restricted cash was used, primarily for capital projects.  Restricted due from primary government balances also decreased by $10.9 
million, resulting from the end of the State’s bond program and the absence of other State capital improvement funding at year end.
Current assets increased by $15.8 million in fiscal year 2009.  This increase was primarily the result of an increase in restricted cash of $18.9 
million.  Increases in restricted cash, classified as current assets, primarily results from the movement of non-current cash to cover increases in 
current liabilities for capital and debt purposes.  This increase was partially offset by a reduction to unrestricted cash of $4.5 million, the primary 
reason being reduced carry over cash at year end because of the State appropriation reductions.
Liabilities totaled $563.0 million, a decrease of $5.4 million over the prior year. The decrease in liabilities is attributable to a decrease in current 
liabilities of $52.8 million and an increase in noncurrent liabilities of $47.4 million.
Current liabilities totaled $118.5 million.  These liabilities include accounts payable and accrued liabilities, due to other entities, deferred revenue, 
and the current portion of University debt.  Current liabilities decreased $52.8 million, primarily because $85.5 million of short - term debt was 
changed to long-term debt financing and another $30.0 million was added to short-term for capital financing purposes. 
Noncurrent liabilities totaled $444.5 million, and include deposits payable, funds held for other entities, funds held in trust in the investment 
pool, long-term debt, and compensated absences.  Noncurrent liabilities increased $47.4 million as a result of multiple factors.  New long-term 
bonded debt totaling $93.6 million was issued in fiscal year 2009.  After considering the effect of the bond proceeds used for extinguishment of 
existing bonds including refunding, redemptions and calls, the net bonds payable increase was only $62.1 million.  Notes payable increased by 
$4.1 million due to an increase in the golf course note payable.  The funds held for others liability increased by $14.6 million primarily due to 
affiliated foundation deposits in the University’s cash accounts with the State Treasurer.  Partially offsetting these increases was a $33.6 million 
decline in funds held in trust for investment pool participants caused by losses in market value of investments held.

The following graph illustrates the assets, liabilities and net assets of the University as of June 30, 2009, as compared to June 30, 2008.

- 200,000,000 400,000,000 600,000,000 800,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,200,000,000 1,400,000,000 

Unrestricted

Restricted Expendable

Restricted Nonexpendable

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Noncurrent Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets, Net

Current Assets

2009 2008
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Engineering students hard at work.  
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Net assets totaled $1.43 billion, a decrease of $10.5 million over the prior year.  Restricted expendable net assets fell $112.2 million with the 
biggest decreases in capital projects ($84.0 million) and endowed professorships ($22.0 million).  Invested in plant net of related debt increased 
by $94.3 million as a result of expending capital reserves and obtaining other capital resources including debt financing and capital grants and 
gifts.  The decline in endowment professorship net assets was primarily attributable to the drop in market values of related investments.  
The University’s current assets are more than sufficient to cover current liabilities.  In the current year, current assets are 2.6 times current 
liabilities compared to a ratio of 1.7 times in the prior year.  The University’s total assets are significantly more than the University’s liabilities 
with a ratio of 3.5 times, which is unchanged from the prior year.  These financial ratios are indicators of NC State’s financial strength and its 
ability to meet current and long-term obligations. 
STATEMENT OF REvENUES, ExPENSES, AND CHANgES IN NET ASSETS

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets provides information regarding the University’s activities for the year ending June 
30, 2009. The activity balances are classified as operating, nonoperating, or other.  Activities classified as operating include all revenues of the 
University except those considered nonoperating or those associated with funds received to enhance capital assets or permanent endowments, 
and all expenses except those related to interest expense on financing activities, loss on disposal of capital assets, and investment expenses (shown 
as net against investment income).  Activities classified as nonoperating include State appropriations, noncapital gifts and grants revenue, 
investment income (net of investment expenses), and gains or losses on disposal of capital assets.  Activities classified as other include capital 
gifts or grants and additions to permanent endowments.  Overall, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets provides 
information to evaluate the University’s management of operations and maintenance of financial strength.
Following is a comparative analysis on the condensed balances reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets for the 
fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, and 2008.
 2009  2008  iNCreaSe/
   (DeCreaSe)
operatiNg reveNUeS
 StUDeNt tUitioN aND FeeS, Net $ 175,524,899  $ 164,451,205  $ 11,073,694 
 FeDeral appropriatioNS 23,156,605  22,231,598  925,007
 graNtS aND CoNtraCtS 188,199,311  183,317,773  4,881,538 
 SaleS aND ServiCeS, Net 172,474,942  164,334,298  8,140,644 
 other 14,359,951  10,021,473  4,338,478 
total operatiNg reveNUeS 573,715,708  544,356,347  29,359,361 

operatiNg expeNSeS
 SalarieS aND beNeFitS 720,572,163  684,157,288  36,414,875 
 SUpplieS aND MaterialS 100,692,620 123,224,335  (22,531,715) 
 ServiCeS 176,252,400  175,383,819  868,581 
 SCholarShipS aND FellowShipS 32,366,944  28,574,649  3,792,295 
 UtilitieS 36,009,011  36,177,447  (168,436) 
 DepreCiatioN 56,485,824  54,609,498  1,876,326 
total operatiNg expeNSeS 1,122,378,962  1,102,127,036  20,251,926 

  Net operatiNg loSS (548,663,254) (557,770,689) 9,107,435

NoNoperatiNg reveNUeS (expeNSeS)
 State appropriatioNS 448,754,067  487,744,042  (38,989,975)  
 State aiD - FeDeral reCovery FUNDS                                                                                                            14,252,039                                                                     14,252,039                                      
     NoNCapital graNtS - FeDeral StUDeNt FiNaNCial aiD 16,594,802                    14,951,181                     1,643,621                                                     
     other NoNCapital giFtS aND graNtS 57,662,520  54,831,822  2,830,698 
 iNveStMeNt iNCoMe (loSS) (21,063,730) (3,515,702)  (17,548,028)
 other  (13,841,437) (10,503,522) (3,337,915) 
  Net NoNoperatiNg reveNUeS 502,358,261  543,507,821  (41,149,560) 

loSS beFore other reveNUeS (46,304,993) (14,262,868) (32,042,125)

Capital appropriatioNS, giFtS, aND graNtS 30,907,374 76,389,480  (45,482,106)
aDDitioNS to perMaNeNt eNDowMeNtS 4,916,348  5,539,285  (622,937) 

iNCreaSe (DeCreaSe) iN Net aSSetS $ (10,481,271)  $ 67,665,897  $ (78,147,168)

The 2008 balances were restated to be consistent with the current year presentation by including federal student financial aid in nonoperating 
revenues instead of operating grants and contracts. 
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Students show their support of the Pack at a NCSU football game.
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OPERATINg AND NONOPERATINg ACTIvITIES

The following illustrates the relationships of operating and nonoperating revenue sources and expense functions to total 
revenue/expenses for the fiscal year 2009 and 2008, and the consistency of relationships between the two years.

operatiNg aND NoNoperatiNg reveNUeS

 % to total % to total
title 2009 2008

State appropriations  41% 44% 
State aid - Federal recovery Funds 1% 0% 
research Contracts and grants 18% 17%
Student tuition and Fees 16% 15%
Sales and Services 16% 15%
Noncapital grants and gifts 7% 6%
Federal appropriations 2% 2%
other -1% 1%
total 100% 100%

The negative percentage for other revenue is the result of investment losses for the year.

operatiNg aND NoNoperatiNg expeNSeS

 % to total % to total
title 2009 2008

instruction 29% 29%
research 19% 19%
public Service 11% 11%
auxiliary enterprises 11% 11%
operations & Maintenance of plant 7% 7%
academic Support 6% 6%
institutional Support 6% 6%
Depreciation 5% 5%
Student Financial aid 3% 3%
Student Services 2% 2%
other 1% 1%
total  100% 100%
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Happy College of Textile students celebrate graduation before their ceremony on Centennial Campus.
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The following graphs illustrate the University’s operating and nonoperating revenues/expenses by source/function.
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College of Textile student Sidney Hill works in the color chemistry lab on Centennial Campus.
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Total revenues (operating and nonoperating) decreased $8.5 million or .8% compared to the prior year. The economic recession was the primary 
factor for this decrease.  State appropriations were cut by $39.0 million or 8.0% from the prior year and investment income had net losses of $21.1 
million as a result of market values dropping.  However, the University received $14.3 million in federal economic recovery funds from the State 
to offset the reduced appropriations.  Also, other factors helped to soften the effects of the economic recession on University revenues.  Student 
tuition and fees increased by $11.1 million or 6.7% over the prior year because of enrollment growth and tuition and fee rate increases.  Sales and 
services also grew as a result of higher demand and rate increases, up $8.1 million or 5.0%, primarily in housing, food services, and veterinary 
hospital revenues.
Total expenses (operating and nonoperating) increased $23.6 million or 2.1% over the prior year, primarily as a result of increases in salaries 
and benefits of $36.4 million and scholarships and fellowships of $3.8 million.  These and other smaller increases are offset by a $22.5 million 
reduction in spending for supplies.  The salaries and benefits increase is due primarily to a salary increase (the greater of 2.75% or $1,100) granted 
by the legislature at the beginning of the year.  Spending for supplies dropped in response to State appropriation reductions.
OTHER ACTIvITy

Other activity totaled $35.8 million, down $46.1 million from the prior year.  Because of budget limitations, the University had no new capital 
appropriations for 2009, a reduction of $38.1 million from the prior year, and had to refund to the State $1.9 million in prior years capital 
appropriations.  Capital gifts were down $25.1 million because the prior year balance included the $20.1 million gift of the Alumni Center.  
Additions to permanent endowments also declined by $.6 million.  These decreases were partially offset by a $19.6 million increase in capital 
grants, primarily State bond/COPs proceeds.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONg-TERM DEBT ACTIvITIES

CAPITAL ASSETS

The University capitalizes assets that have a value or cost equal to or greater than $5,000 at the date of acquisition and an expected useful life 
of more than one year.  Repairs and renovations that do not extend the life of the building beyond the expected useful life at acquisition, nor 
increase the future service potential of the building are expensed and not capitalized.   
 
Machinery and Equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, generally 4 to 22 years beginning in the year of acquisition.  
Buildings and general Infrastructure are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, generally 10 to 50 years for buildings and 15 to 75 years 
for general infrastructure beginning in the year that the construction is completed or, if purchased after construction, when acquired.   Land 
and Construction in Progress are nondepreciable capital assets.  When a construction project is completed, the capital project costs are moved 
from the Construction in Progress account to either Buildings or general Infrastructure as appropriate.
 
As shown in the following table, the University increased its net capital assets by $106.3 million during fiscal year 2009.          

   increase/
 2009 2008 (Decrease)

land $ 26,914,428  $ 24,614,119  $ 2,300,309 
Construction in progress  145,513,373  114,984,835  30,528,538
buildings  1,385,945,616  1,290,979,446  94,966,170 
Machinery and equipment  249,036,940  242,851,018  6,185,922
general infrastructure  140,311,584  124,560,166  15,751,418
total Capital assets  1,947,721,941  1,797,989,584  149,732,357
accumulated Depreciation  (562,090,028)  (518,702,506)  (43,387,522)
Net Capital assets $ 1,385,631,913  $ 1,279,287,078  $ 106,344,835

In addition to costs incurred, the University had $58.5 million in outstanding commitments for construction projects as of June 30, 2009. 
 
During fiscal year 2009 NC State continued to build new facilities and work on renovations to modernize campus.  Funding for these 
improvements came from funds provided by North Carolina bonds and certificates of participation, prior years State capital appropriations, 
and University debt financing.
 
Following are some of the major construction projects that were completed or were in progress as of June 30, 2009.
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Students pass Polk Hall as they walk and bike to class.
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The completed renovation of Park Shops has brought the building, originally constructed in 1914, up to modern day regulations, improved the 
foundation and leveled the previously uneven floors and enables the building to be used for the College of Humanities and Social Sciences labs, 
Distance Education Learning Technology Applications and other undergraduate academic programs instead of as a storage facility for other 
buildings on campus.  Key additions include an elevator, energy efficient thermal windows and a new roof.  
The new 119,000 square foot SAS Hall located on the main campus houses state-of-the-art classrooms, computer labs, tutorial centers and 
meeting and study space for students and faculty from NC State’s mathematics and statistics departments. A partnership with Cisco Systems, 
Inc., will improve digital communications for students by providing access to live and on-demand video content from anywhere on campus.
Renovations of the Frank Thompson Theater include the addition of gallery exhibition space to the main theatre lobby, enhanced soundproofing 
and structural improvements that will allow multiple performances and activities to occur simultaneously, state of the art equipment that has 
long been absent, and improved access for people with disabilities.  As well as housing the University Theater it will be home to the Crafts Center 
and will provide newly configured and outfitted studio space in the Crafts Center with safe, efficient and state-of-the-art working areas for 
students.
Major safety code upgrades were provided in the nine apartment buildings of Western Manor Apartments located off Avent Ferry Road.  These 
upgrades include new sprinkler systems, new fire alarm systems, accessibility to meet ADA requirements for facilities such as laundry and other 
common areas, and the removal of any asbestos materials identified from prior construction.  
The Lonnie Poole golf Course also opened for business this year.  The Arnold Palmer signature course is a challenging par 71, 18 hole course on 
Centennial Campus that overlooks the downtown Raleigh Skyline with picturesque views from the tee boxes.  Not only does it bring world class 
golf to the University’s campus, but state of the art research facilities for the turf and golf course management departments.
More information about the University’s long-range capital plan is located at www.ncsu.edu/facilities/construction_info/index.htm.

LONg-TERM DEBT ACTIvITIES

The University incurs long-term debt to finance construction projects, to purchase equipment using lease arrangements and to provide for 
accumulated unused vacation benefits for employees.  As shown in the following chart, the University increased its long-term debt by $67.0 
million during fiscal year 2009.   

   increase/
 2009 2008 (Decrease) 

bonds payable $ 253,137,535 $ 191,086,912   $ 62,050,623
Capital leases payable 513,688 50,461 463,227
Notes payable 4,994,095 905,000 4,089,095
Compensated absences 56,515,793 56,093,368 422,425 
total long-term liabilities $ 315,161,111  $ 248,135,741 $ 67,025,370

NC State issued $93.6 million in new bonds in fiscal year 2009.  However, some $24.0 million in bonds were refunded, redeemed, or called and 
regular principal payments were made bringing the year end increase in bonds to $62.1 million.  There was also a $4.1 million increase in the golf 
course note payable, and compensated absences showed a small increase. 
ECONOMIC FACTORS THAT WILL AFFECT THE FUTURE

North Carolina State University, like many institutions across the nation, continues to feel the effects of the economic recession.  The economic 
recession has significantly impacted multiple funding facets that support the University and it will take time to repair the damage.  State funding 
as well as our endowment spending has and will continue to be impacted, as will foundation operations and their support to the University. 

In meeting these difficult and challenging times, the Chancellor and his executive management team continue to use a collective strategy to 
assist program and fiscal managers with directing budget reduction and at the same time ensuring the achievement of core mission services.  
Positions have been eliminated, with significant reductions to administrative positions.  While to a much lesser degree, teaching positions have 
been effected, especially in program areas not considered core to the University’s mission and in areas where improved efficiencies are obtainable 
with limited impact on the students.    
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Wolfpack players exit the tunnel prior to a home NCSU football game.
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While operating resources have been impacted by the economic recession, there are many factors that provide a vision for an exciting and 
successful tomorrow.  What’s in store for NC State’s future is magnified by the following known factors:  

Capital Investment – Total additions to plant investment since fiscal year 2002 has been $898.8 million.    In addition, during this time affiliated 
foundations have provided funding for new and expanded facilities such as the expansion of Carter-Finley Football Stadium, the Alumni Center 
and the new Lonnie Poole golf Course. 

Enrollment growth - Student enrollment continues to grow with the number of students attending classes for fall 2009 at 33,879.  During the 
past five years the growth of enrollment has been 12.4%.  The strength in these numbers makes NC State the largest state university in the 16 
constituent University of North Carolina System. 

State Support – State appropriations continues to provide strong support and makes up 41% of the total source of funding for the University’s 
fiscal year 2009 operations.  With the economic recession, unprecedented reductions to appropriations were made necessary to balance the 
State’s Budget.  However, to minimize the effect of budget cuts on education, the State did increase various revenue streams and approved 
increased student enrollment funding in the fiscal year 2010 budget.  

Tuition and Fees – Undergraduate tuition and fees increased $253 (4.8%) for residents and $440 (2.5%) for nonresidents for the 2010 academic 
year.  However, the cost of education at NC State continues to be very affordable and combined with the high quality of education received, NC 
State continues to be reported as a best value among national universities and colleges.  Annual tuition and fees for resident undergraduates have 
increased from $5,274 in 2008 to $5,527 in 2010.  Annual tuition and fees for nonresident undergraduates have increased from $17,572 in 2008 
to $18,012 in 2010.    

Research and Innovation - Research and innovation continues to advance patents with the number now reaching 271 over the last four years and 
over 650 active patents.  In addition, NC State’s Centennial Campus continues to be a national model for government, business and university 
partnerships and how a research campus should be established.  NC State’s research and patent efforts as well as the Centennial Campus 
achievement continue to receive recognition in national publications.  NC State’s research is ranked fourth among universities without medical 
schools in industry-funded research and third in patent pipeline power of all universities in Life Sciences.  NC State’s Centennial Campus 
includes 100 integrated corporate and government research partners, including 25 incubator companies and 2,200 employees.  NC State’s 
Centennial Campus was named the top research science park by the Association of University Research Parks in October, 2007. 

gift and Foundation Noncapital Support – While the economic recession has put gifts and endowment and foundation support at risk, the 
long-term trend for such support has been upward.  The gifts, endowment and foundation noncapital support has grown from $51.6 million in 
2007 to $59.8 million in 2009.      

With our financial strength and stability, the quality of our administration, faculty and staff, the long-term support from the state and federal 
government and our affiliated organizations, our commitment of excellence and innovation, and the public recognition of our quality and 
affordability, NC State University stands committed as the people’s university to provide leadership in meeting important challenges that face 
the state, nation and the world. 
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Mary Ann Lila at the new research campus in Kannapolis
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North Carolina State University
Statement of Net assets
June 30, 2009 exhibit a-1

aSSetS

Current assets:
 Cash and Cash equivalents $ 165,881,831
 restricted Cash and Cash equivalents 85,002,728
 restricted Short-term investments 1,239
 receivables, Net (Note 4) 37,483,904
 Due from primary government 10,362,452 
          Due from State of North Carolina Component Units 3,917,735
 inventories 4,730,988 
          Notes receivable, Net (Note 4) 3,967,366
 total Current assets 311,348,243
Noncurrent assets:
 restricted Cash and Cash equivalents 46,062,984
 restricted Due from primary government 1,322,526
 endowment investments 129,619,454
 other investments 107,333,772
 Notes receivable, Net (Note 4) 10,669,235
 Capital assets - Nondepreciable (Note 5) 172,427,801
 Capital assets - Depreciable, Net (Note 5) 1,213,204,112
 total Noncurrent assets 1,680,639,884
 total assets 1,991,988,127
liabilitieS

Current liabilities:
 accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 6) 41,444,703
 Due to primary government 7,193,910
 Due to State of North Carolina Component Units 214,738
 Unearned revenue 35,790,649
 interest payable 1,818,436
 Short-term Debt (Note 7) 20,000,000
 long-term liabilities – Current portion (Note 8) 12,039,119
 total Current liabilities 118,501,555
Noncurrent liabilities:
 Deposits payable 966,150
 Funds held for others 17,087,473
 U. S. government grants refundable 5,996,775
 Funds held in trust for pool participants 117,351,982
 long-term liabilities (Note 8) 303,121,992
 total Noncurrent liabilities 444,524,372
 total liabilities 563,025,927
Net aSSetS

invested in Capital assets, Net of related Debt 1,106,986,595
restricted for:
 Nonexpendable:
  Scholarships and Fellowships 8,249,315
  endowed professorships 43,377,687
  Departmental Uses 6,495,334
  loans 6,643,149
  other 1,268,198
 expendable:
  Scholarships and Fellowships 17,457,809
  research 15,816,555
  endowed professorships 27,250,821
  Departmental Uses 25,521,359
  loans 1,361,170
  Capital projects 10,527,568
  Debt Service 2,766,592
  other 7,754,702
Unrestricted 147,485,346
total Net assets $ 1,428,962,200

the accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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North Carolina State University
Statement of revenues, expenses, and
Changes in Net assets
For the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 exhibit a-2

reveNUeS

operating revenues:
 Student tuition and Fees, Net (Note 10) $ 175,524,899 
 Federal appropriations  23,156,605
 Federal grants and Contracts 103,501,180
 State and local grants and Contracts 35,982,356 
 Nongovernmental grants and Contracts 48,715,775
 Sales and Services, Net (Note 10) 172,474,942
 interest earnings on loans 385,555
 other operating revenues, Net (Note 10)   13,974,396
          total operating revenues 573,715,708
expeNSeS

operating expenses:
 Salaries and benefits 720,572,163
 Supplies and Materials 100,692,620
 Services 176,252,400
 Scholarships and Fellowships 32,366,944
 Utilities 36,009,011
 Depreciation 56,485,824
 total operating expenses 1,122,378,962
 operating loss (548,663,254)

NoNoperatiNg reveNUeS (expeNSeS)

State appropriations                                                448,754,067 
State aid - Federal recovery Funds                     14,252,039
Noncapital grants - Federal Student Financial aid                                                                                              16,594,802         
other Noncapital grants                            2,807,274 
Noncapital gifts                           54,855,246
investment loss (including investment expense of $585,432) (21,063,730)
interest and Fees on Debt (11,511,215)
other Nonoperating expenses (2,330,222)
 Net Nonoperating revenues 502,358,261 

loss before other revenues and expenses (46,304,993)

refund of prior years Capital appropriations (1,888,708)
Capital grants 27,976,162
Capital gifts  4,819,920
additions to endowments 4,916,348
 Decrease in Net assets (10,481,271)
Net aSSetS

Net assets – July 1, 2008 1,439,443,471 
Net assets – June 30, 2009 $1,428,962,200

the accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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North Carolina State University
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 exhibit a-3

CaSh FlowS FroM operatiNg aCtivitieS

received from Customers $ 559,139,690
payments to employees and Fringe benefits (719,571,969)
payments to vendors and Suppliers (313,659,388)
payments for Scholarships and Fellowships (32,366,944)
loans issued (814,664)
Collection of loans 1,403,425
interest earned on loans 185,541
other receipts 13,974,396
 Net Cash Used by operating activities (491,709,913)
CaSh FlowS FroM NoNCapital FiNaNCiNg aCtivitieS

State appropriations 448,754,067
State aid - Federal recovery Funds 14,252,039 
Noncapital grants - Federal Student Financial aid 16,594,802
other Noncapital grants 522,418 
Noncapital gifts 55,142,536
additions to endowments 4,916,348
Federal Family education loan receipts 101,755,293 
Federal Family education loan Disbursements (100,058,148)
william D. Ford Direct lending receipts 223,963 
william D. Ford Direct lending Disbursements (267,900)
related activity agency receipts 63,406,445
related activity agency Disbursements (49,240,051)
external participation in investment Fund receipts 11,685,228
external participation in investment Fund Disbursements (8,080,788) 
other receipts 184,886 
 Net Cash provided by Noncapital Financing activities 559,791,138
CaSh FlowS FroM Capital FiNaNCiNg aND
relateD FiNaNCiNg aCtivitieS

proceeds from Capital Debt 127,837,858
refund of prior year State Capital appropriations (1,888,708) 
Capital grants 39,410,128
Capital gifts 4,155,930
proceeds from Sale of Capital assets 402,098
acquisition and Construction of Capital assets (161,439,537)
principal paid on Capital Debt and leases (108,343,640)
interest and Fees paid on Capital Debt and leases (10,706,321)
payment to bond escrow agent (9,058,936)
other payments (568,514)
 Net Cash Used by Capital Financing and related Financing activities (120,199,642)
CaSh FlowS FroM iNveStiNg aCtivitieS

proceeds from Sales and Maturities of investments 389,849,269
investment income 8,443,569
purchase of investments and related Fees (381,354,599)
 Net Cash provided by investing activities 16,938,239 
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents (35,180,178)
Cash and Cash equivalents – July 1, 2008 332,127,721 
Cash and Cash equivalents – June 30, 2009                                                                                                                                                                                 $       296,947,543 
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North Carolina State University
Statement of Cash Flows exhibit a-3
For the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 page 2

reCoNCiliatioN oF Net operatiNg reveNUeS (expeNSeS)
to Net CaSh USeD by operatiNg aCtivitieS

operating loss $ (548,663,254)
adjustments to reconcile operating loss to Net Cash Used by operating activities:
 Depreciation expense 56,485,824
 allowances, write-offs, and amortizations 1,492,523
 Changes in assets and liabilities:
  receivables (Net) (3,392,669)
  Due from primary government (42,864)
  inventories 122,604
  accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,674,907)
  Due to primary government 2,445,845
  Unearned revenue 1,541,876
  Compensated absences 422,423
  Deposits payable 552,686
Net Cash Used by operating activities $ (491,709,913)
reCoNCiliatioN oF CaSh aND CaSh eQUivaleNtS
 Current assets:
  Cash and Cash equivalents $ 165,881,831
  restricted Cash and Cash equivalents 85,002,728
 Noncurrent assets:
  restricted Cash and Cash equivalents 46,062,984
total Cash and Cash equivalents – June 30, 2009 $ 296,947,543
NoNCaSh iNveStiNg, Capital, aND FiNaNCiNg aCtivitieS
 assets acquired through the assumption of a liability $ 496,868 
 assets acquired through a gift  919,200
 Change in Fair value of investments (44,138,419)
 loss on Disposal of Capital assets (213,426)
 amortization of bond premium/Discounts (596,464)
 bond issuance Cost withheld (383,323) 
 

the accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Block “S” above the back door of Holladay Hall.
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North Carolina State University
Component Unit Statement of Financial position
June 30, 2009 exhibit b-1

   North Carolina NC State
   State University Student aid
   Foundation, inc. association, inc.

aSSetS

Cash and Cash equivalents $ 4,258,843  $ 24,393,155
investments 7,403,181  22,804,943
investments with University investment pool 48,061,096
Cash Surrender value of life insurance 184,271  180,558
real estate held for resale 2,792,636  7,796,429
receivables, Net 738,055 152,577
pledges receivable/promises  16,944.028  33,403,403
prepaid expenses  30,976
Notes/loans receivable, Net  46,350
property and equipment, Net 678,409  54,313,885
 total assets 81,060,519  143,122,276
liabilitieS

accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,204,724  636,971
Deferred revenue  3,786,585
interest payable  153,471
Deposits payable  7,755
Funds held for others 58,600  
interest rate Swap Fair value liability  3,659,388 
Split interest agreement obligations 3,650,426 
Notes payable  1,783,182
bonds payable  58,580,000
 total liabilities 4,913,750  68,607,352
Net aSSetS

 Unrestricted (2,158,139)  21,829,835
 temporarily restricted 37,874,920  29,498,790
 permanently restricted 40,429,988  23,186,299
total Net assets $ 76,146,769  $ 74,514,924

the accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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North Carolina State University
Component Unit Statement of activities
For the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 exhibit b-2

   North Carolina NC State
   State University Student aid
   Foundation, inc. association, inc.

ChaNgeS iN UNreStriCteD Net aSSetS

revenues, gains and losses:
 Contributions $ 15,287  $ 9,005,716
 Donated Services and Noncash Contributions 451,900  2,147,075
 Student housing rents  2,445,176
 investment income 41,920  955,459
 Net Unrealized and realized losses on long-term investments (3,327,926) (725,640)
 Unrealized loss on Swap Contracts  (1,553,853) 
 Net asset reclassification - Underwater endowments (4,620,949) 
 other 3,651,239  1,580,491
 total Unrestricted revenues, gains and losses (3,788,529)  13,854,424
Net assets released from restrictions:
 Satisfaction of program restrictions 6,311,602 203,005
 Facility improvements  7,211,005
 total Net assets released from restrictions 6,311,602 7,414,010
 total Unrestricted revenues, gains, losses and other Support 2,523,073  21,268,434
expenses
 University Support 7,068,336  6,848,350
 University Facilities Support 1,670,472  7,211,005
 Student housing  3,121,443
 Management and general 307,406 487,219
 Fund raising 581,926 2,796,781
 total expenses 9,628,140 20,464,798
 increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net assets (7,105,067) 803,636
ChaNgeS iN teMporarily reStriCteD Net aSSetS

Contributions 1,887,911  2,648,491
Donated Services and Noncash Contributions   564,600
investment income   213,429
Net Unrealized and realized loss on long-term investments (13,617,645) (234,907)
Unrealized loss on Swap Contracts  (722,457) 
Net asset reclassification - Underwater endowments 4,620,949 
vaughn towers revenue   4,312,850 
other (1,455,053) 
Net assets released from restrictions:
 Satisfaction of program restrictions (6,311,602)
 Facility improvements  (7,211,005)
 Decrease in temporarily restricted Net assets (14,875,440)  (428,999)
ChaNgeS iN perMaNeNtly reStriCteD Net aSSetS

Contributions 1,141,141  798,626
investment income 155,145
Net Unrealized and realized losses on long-term investments (598,615)  (3,565,290)
Change in value of Split interest agreements 1,015,810
other 806,314 (37,526)
Net assets released from restrictions:
 Satisfaction of program restrictions  (203,005)
 increase (Decrease) in permanently restricted Net assets 2,519,795  (3,007,195)
Decrease in Net assets (19,460,712) (2,632,558)
Net assets at beginning of year 95,607,481 77,147,482
 Net assets at end of year $ 76,146,769  $ 74,514,924

the accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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View of the Raleigh skyline from the new Lonnie Poole Golf Course on Centennial Campus.
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NOTE 1
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. financial Reporting entity - The concept underlying the definition of  the financial reporting entity is that 
elected officials are accountable to their constituents for their actions.  As required by accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of  America (GAAP), the financial reporting entity includes both the primary govern-
ment and all of  its component units.  An organization other than a primary government serves as a nucleus for a re-
porting entity when it issues separate financial statements.  North Carolina State University is a constituent institution 
of  the multi-campus University of  North Carolina System, which is a component unit of  the State of  North Carolina 
and an integral part of  the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

The accompanying financial statements present all funds belonging to the University and its component units.  While 
the Board of  Governors of  the University of  North Carolina System has ultimate responsibility, the Chancellor, the 
Board of  Trustees, and the Board of  Trustees of  the Endowment Fund have delegated responsibilities for financial 
accountability of  the University’s funds.  The University’s component units are either blended or discretely presented 
in the University’s financial statements.  The blended component units, although legally separate, are, in substance, 
part of  the University’s operations and therefore, are reported as if  they were part of  the University.  Discretely pre-
sented component units’ financial data are reported in separate financial statements because of  their use of  different 
GAAP reporting models and to emphasize their legal separateness.

Blended Component Units - Although legally separate, the NC State Investment Fund, Inc., (Investment Fund) and 
the NC State University Partnership Corporation (Corporation), component units of  the University, are reported as 
if  they were part of  the University. 

The Investment Fund is governed by a Members Board consisting of  six ex officio directors and five elected repre-
sentatives.  The Investment Fund’s purpose is to support the University by operating an investment fund for chari-
table nonprofit foundations, associations, trusts, endowments and funds that are organized and operated primarily 
to support the University.  The Investment Fund is a governmental external investment pool.  Because the majority 
of  the Members Board of  the Investment Fund consists of  University administrators and board members and the 
Investment Fund’s primary purpose is to benefit North Carolina State University, its financial statements have been 
blended with those of  the University. 

The Corporation is governed by a Board of  Directors appointed by the Chancellor of  the University.  The Corpora-
tion’s purpose is to support and benefit the University with the aims of  creating new knowledge and improving the 
lives of  the people of  North Carolina. The Corporation formed NC State University Centennial Development, LLC 
on January 25, 2002 to develop, construct, own, finance, manage and otherwise deal with a nonprofit hotel, golf  
course, conference center and related meeting facilities on Centennial Campus as outlined in the Campus Master Plan. 
In addition, the Corporation formed NC State Upfit, LLC on October 27, 2006 to develop, construct, own, finance, 
manage and otherwise upfit facilities and other infrastructure on Centennial Campus, and it formed NC State Resi-
dence, LLC on October 27, 2006 to develop, construct, own, finance, manage and otherwise deal with a nonprofit 
chancellor’s residence on Centennial Campus. Also, the Corporation formed NC State CBC Land I, LLC on June 1, 
2007 to acquire, develop, own, lease, hold, manage, sell, and otherwise exercise all right of  ownership of  land and flex 
lab facilities on Centennial Biomedical Campus. Additionally, the Corporation formed NC State American Home, 
LLC on August 8, 2007 to conduct research, and facilitate learning through displays of  cutting-edge technology and 
research, in construction, landscape design, environmental management and community planning, including instruc-
tion regarding site development and home construction.  On March 31, 2008 the Corporation formed NC State 
CC Holding I, LLC to acquire, develop, own, lease, hold, manage, sell and otherwise exercise all right of  ownership 
of  land and facilities on Centennial Campus.  Because the Corporation’s Board is appointed by the Chancellor and 
its sole purpose is to support and benefit the University, the Corporation and the LLCs are considered part of  the 
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University for financial reporting purposes.    

Separate financial statements for the Investment Fund and for the Corporation and the LLCs may be obtained from 
the Foundations Accounting and Investments Office, Campus Box 7207, Raleigh, NC 27695, or by calling (919) 
513-7149.  Other related foundations and similar non-profit corporations for which the University is not financially 
accountable are not part of  the accompanying financial statements.

Discretely Presented Component Units - The North Carolina State University Foundation, Inc. (Foundation) 
and NC State Student Aid Association, Inc. (Athletic Club) are legally separate not-for-profit corporations and are 
reported as discretely presented component units based on the nature and significance of  their relationship to the 
University.

The Foundation and Athletic Club are legally separate, tax-exempt component units of  the University.  These entities 
act primarily as fund-raising organizations to supplement the resources that are available to the University in support 
of  its programs.  Separate Boards of  Directors govern these entities independent of  the University’s Board of  Trust-
ees.  Although the University does not control the timing or amount of  receipts from these entities, the majority of  
resources, or income thereon, that these entities hold and invest are restricted to the activities of  the University by the 
donors.  Because these restricted resources held by these entities can only be used by, or for the benefit of  the Univer-
sity, these entities are considered component units of  the University and are reported in separate financial statements 
because of  the difference in their reporting model, as described below.

The Foundation and Athletic Club are private not-for-profit organizations that report their financial results under 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements.  As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presenta-
tion features are different from Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) revenue recognition criteria and 
presentation features.  No modifications have been made to their financial information in the University’s financial 
reporting entity for these differences.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Foundation distributed  $7,897,207 to the University for both restricted and 
unrestricted purposes.  Complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained from the Foundations Ac-
counting and Investments Office, Campus Box 7207, Raleigh, NC 27695, or by calling (919) 513-7149.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Athletic Club distributed  $5,419,927 to the University for both restricted 
and unrestricted purposes.  Complete financial statements for the Athletic Club can be obtained from the NC State 
Student Aid Association, PO Box 37100, Raleigh, NC 27627, or by calling (919) 865-1500.

B. Basis of  Presentation - The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of  America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Stan-
dards Board (GASB).

Pursuant to the provisions of  GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Anal-
ysis - for State and Local Governments, as amended by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities, the full scope of  the University’s activities is considered to be 
a single business-type activity and accordingly, is reported within a single column in the basic financial statements.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Govern-
mental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the University does not apply FASB pronouncements issued after 
November 30, 1989, unless the GASB amends its pronouncements to specifically adopt FASB pronouncements is-
sued after that date.
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C. Basis of  accounting - The financial statements of  the University have been prepared using the economic 
resource measurement focus and the accrual basis of  accounting.  Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized 
when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred, regardless of  the timing of  the cash 
flows.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the University receives (or gives) value without directly giving (or receiving) 
equal value in exchange includes State appropriations, certain grants, and donations.  Revenues are recognized, net 
of  estimated uncollectible amounts, as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met, if  
probable of  collection.

D. Cash and Cash equivalents - This classification includes undeposited receipts, petty cash, cash on deposit 
with private bank accounts, money market accounts, cash on deposit with fiscal agents, and deposits held by the State 
Treasurer in the short-term investment fund.  The short-term investment fund maintained by the State Treasurer has 
the general characteristics of  a demand deposit account in that participants may deposit and withdraw cash at any time 
without prior notice or penalty. 
 
e. Investments - Investments generally are reported at fair value, as determined by quoted market prices or an 
estimated amount determined by management if  quoted market prices are not available.  Because of  the inherent un-
certainty in the use of  estimates, values that are based on estimates may differ from the values that would have been 
used had a ready market existed for the investments.  The net increase (decrease) in the fair value of  investments is 
recognized as a component of  investment income.  

Money market funds, real estate not held by a governmental external investment pool, and other asset holdings are 
reported at cost, if  purchased, or at fair value or appraised value at date of  gift, if  donated.  Private equity funds 
consist primarily of  investments that are not readily marketable.  Investments in these categories, which are managed 
externally, are valued utilizing the most current information provided by the general partner.
      
Endowment investments include the principal amount of  gifts and bequests that, according to donor restrictions, 
must be held in perpetuity or for a specified period of  time, along with any accumulated investment earnings on 
such amounts.  Further, endowment investments also include amounts internally designated by the University for 
investment in an endowment capacity (i.e. quasi-endowments), along with accumulated investment earnings on such 
amounts.  Land and other real estate held as investments by endowments are reported at fair value, consistent with 
how investments are generally reported.  However, real estate held as quasi-endowments or principally for other than 
investment purposes is reported at cost.

f. Receivables - Receivables consist of  tuition and fees charged to students and charges for auxiliary enter-
prises’ sales and services.  Receivables also include amounts due from the federal government, State and local govern-
ments, and private sources in connection with reimbursement of  allowable expenditures made pursuant to contracts 
and grants.  Receivables are recorded net of  estimated uncollectible amounts. 
 
G. Inventories - Inventories, consisting of  expendable supplies and merchandise for resale, are valued at cost us-
ing the first-in, first-out method.  Exceptions are the bookstore, which uses the retail inventory method, and physical 
plant, which uses the moving weighted average method.

H. Capital assets - Capital assets are stated at cost at date of  acquisition or fair value at date of  donation in the 
case of  gifts.  The value of  assets constructed includes all material direct and indirect construction costs.  Interest 
costs incurred are capitalized during the period of  construction.
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The University capitalizes assets that have a value or cost in excess of  $5,000 at the date of  acquisition and an esti-
mated useful life of  more than one year.  Library books are generally not considered to have a useful life of  more than 
one year unless part of  a collection and are expensed in the year of  acquisition.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of  the assets, generally 15 to 
75 years for general infrastructure, 10 to 50 years for buildings, and 4 to 22 years for equipment.
   
The University does not capitalize its collections.  These collections adhere to the University’s policy to maintain for 
public exhibition, education, or research; protect, keep unencumbered, care for, and preserve; and requires proceeds 
from their sale to be used to acquire other collection items.  Accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of  America permit collections maintained in this manner to be charged to operations at time of  purchase rather 
than be capitalized.

I. Restricted assets - Certain resources are reported as restricted assets because restrictions on asset use change 
the nature or normal understanding of  the availability of  the asset.  Resources that are not available for current op-
erations and are reported as restricted include resources restricted or designated for the acquisition or construction 
of  capital assets and resources legally segregated for the payment of  principal and interest as required by debt cov-
enants.

J. funds Held in trust for Pool Participants - Funds held in trust for pool participants represent the external 
portion of  the University’s governmental external investment pool more fully described in Note 2.
 
K.  noncurrent Long-term Liabilities - Noncurrent long-term liabilities include principal amounts of  bonds 
payable, notes payable, capital lease obligations,  and compensated absences that will not be paid within the next fiscal 
year.

Bonds payable are reported net of  unamortized premiums or discounts.  The University amortizes bond premiums/
discounts over the life of  the bonds using the straight-line method.  Losses on refunding and issuance costs on bonds 
payable are not material to the accompanying financial statements and are expensed in the year incurred.

L. Compensated absences - The University’s policy is to record the cost of  vacation leave when earned.  The 
policy provides for a maximum accumulation of  unused vacation leave of  30 days which can be carried forward each 
January 1 or for which an employee can be paid upon termination of  employment.  When classifying compensated 
absences into current and noncurrent, leave is considered taken using a last-in, first-out (LIFO) method.  Also, any 
accumulated vacation leave in excess of  30 days at year-end is converted to sick leave.  Under this policy, the accumu-
lated vacation leave for each employee at June 30 equals the leave carried forward at the previous December 31 plus 
the leave earned, less the leave taken between January 1 and June 30.

In addition to the vacation leave described above, compensated absences include the accumulated unused portion 
of  the special annual leave bonuses awarded by the North Carolina General Assembly.  The bonus leave balance on 
December 31 is retained by employees and transferred into the next calendar year.  It is not subject to the limitation 
on annual leave carried forward described above and is not subject to conversion to sick leave.

There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave because the University has no obligation to pay sick leave upon 
termination or retirement.  However, additional service credit for retirement pension benefits is given for accumulated 
sick leave upon retirement. 
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m. net assets - The University’s net assets are classified as follows:

Invested in Capital assets, net of  Related Debt - This represents the University’s total investment in capital as-
sets, net of  outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets.  To the extent debt has been incurred but not 
yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of  invested in capital assets, net of  
related debt.

Restricted net assets - nonexpendable - Nonexpendable restricted net assets include endowments and similar 
type assets whose use is limited by donors or other outside sources, and, as a condition of  the gift, the principal is to 
be maintained in perpetuity.

Restricted net assets - expendable - Expendable restricted net assets include resources for which the University 
is legally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external parties.

Unrestricted net assets - Unrestricted net assets include resources derived from student tuition and fees, sales and 
services, unrestricted gifts, royalties, and interest income.

Restricted and unrestricted resources are tracked using a fund accounting system and are spent in accordance with 
established fund authorities.  Fund authorities provide rules for the fund activity and are separately established for 
restricted and unrestricted activities.  When both restricted and unrestricted funds are available for expenditure, the 
decision for funding is transactional based within the departmental management system in place at the University.  For 
projects funded by tax-exempt debt proceeds and other sources, the debt proceeds are always used first.

n. Scholarship Discounts - Student tuition and fees revenues and certain other revenues from University charg-
es are reported net of  scholarship discounts in the accompanying Statement of  Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Net Assets.  The scholarship discount is the difference between the actual charge for goods and services provided by 
the University and the amount that is paid by students or by third parties on the students’ behalf.  Student financial 
assistance grants, such as Pell grants, and other federal, State, or nongovernmental programs, are recorded as either 
operating or nonoperating revenues in the accompanying Statement of  Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net As-
sets.  To the extent that revenues from these programs are used to satisfy tuition, fees, and other charges, the Univer-
sity has recorded a scholarship discount.

o. Revenue and expense Recognition - The University classifies its revenues and expenses as operating or 
nonoperating in the accompanying Statement of  Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets.  Operating rev-
enues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
the University’s principal ongoing operations.  Operating revenues include activities that have characteristics of  ex-
change transactions, such as (1) student tuition and fees, (2) sales and services of  auxiliary enterprises, (3) certain 
federal, State, and local grants and contracts that are essentially contracts for services, and (4) interest earned on loans.  
Operating expenses are all expense transactions incurred other than those related to capital and noncapital financing 
or investing activities as defined by GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of  Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust 
Funds and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting.

Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of  nonexchange transactions.  Revenues from 
nonexchange transactions and State appropriations that represent subsidies or gifts to the University, as well as invest-
ment income, are considered nonoperating since these are either investing, capital, or noncapital financing activities.  
Capital contributions are presented separately after nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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P. Internal Sales activities - Certain institutional auxiliary operations provide goods and services to University 
departments, as well as to its customers.  These institutional auxiliary operations include activities such as Central 
Stores, University Graphics, the Copy Center, the Creamery, Telecommunications, Physical Plant, and Motor Pool.  
In addition, the University has other miscellaneous sales and service units that operated either on a reimbursement 
or charge basis.  All internal sales activities to University departments from auxiliary operations and sales and service 
units have been eliminated in the accompanying financial statements.  These eliminations are recorded by removing 
the revenue and expense in the auxiliary operations and sales and service units and, if  significant, allocating any re-
sidual balances to those departments receiving the goods and services during the year.

note 2
DePoSItS anD InVeStmentS

a. Deposits - Unless specifically exempt, the University is required by North Carolina General Statute 147-77 to 
deposit moneys received with the State Treasurer or with a depository institution in the name of  the State Treasurer.  
In addition, the University of  North Carolina Board of  Governors, pursuant to G.S. 116-36.1, requires the University 
to deposit its institutional trust funds, except for funds received for services rendered by health care professionals, 
with the State Treasurer.  Although specifically exempted, the University may voluntarily deposit endowment funds, 
special funds, revenue bond proceeds, debt service funds, and funds received for services rendered by health care 
professionals with the State Treasurer.  Special funds consist of  moneys for intercollegiate athletics and agency funds 
held directly by the University.

At June 30, 2009, the amount shown on the Statement of  Net Assets as cash and cash equivalents includes $295,238,799, 
which represents the University’s equity position in the State Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Fund.  The Short- 
Term Investment Fund (a portfolio within the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool, an external investment pool that 
is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and does not have a credit rating) had a weighted 
average maturity of  1.8 years as of  June 30, 2009.  Assets and shares of  the Short-Term Investment Fund are valued 
at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.  Deposit and investment risks associated with the State Treasurer’s 
Investment Pool (which includes the State Treasurer’s Short-Term Investment Fund) are included in the State of  
North Carolina’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  An electronic version of  this report is available by accessing the 
North Carolina Office of  the State Controller’s Internet home page http://www.ncosc.net/ and clicking on “Proceed 
directly to OSC’s index page,” then “Reports,” or by calling the State Controller’s Financial Reporting Section at (919) 
981-5454.
  
Cash on hand at June 30, 2009 was $187,782.  The carrying amount of  the University’s deposits not with the State 
Treasurer, was $1,520,962 and the bank balance was $1,579,176.  Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of  a 
bank failure, the University’s deposits may not be returned to it.  The University follows the Cash Management Plan 
(Plan) approved by the North Carolina Office of  State Controller.  As provided by the Plan, all funds belonging to 
the University are deposited with the State Treasurer pursuant to G.S. 147-77 and G.S. 147-69.1.  As provided by the 
Plan, imprest checking accounts are established with outside banks when considered effective in meeting management 
objectives.  All imprest checking accounts are authorized by the University Treasurer and are limited to the minimum 
amount needed for sanctioned purposes. In addition, pursuant to G.S. 116-36(e), the University invests certain endow-
ment funds with outside bank accounts.  As of  June 30, 2009, $691,543 of  the bank balance was exposed to custodial 
credit risk.
  
B. Investments - The University is authorized by The University of  North Carolina Board of  Governors pursu-
ant to G.S. 116-36.2 and Section 600.2.4 of  the Policy Manual of  the University of  North Carolina to invest its special 
funds and funds received for services rendered by health care professionals in the same manner as the State Treasurer 
is required to invest, as discussed below.
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G.S. 147-69.1(c), applicable to the State’s General Fund, and G.S. 147-69.2, applicable to institutional trust funds, 
authorize the State Treasurer to invest in the following:  obligations of  or fully guaranteed by the United States; obli-
gations of  certain federal agencies; repurchase agreements; obligations of  the State of  North Carolina; time deposits 
of  specified institutions; prime quality commercial paper; and asset-backed securities with specified ratings.  Also, G.S. 
147-69.1(c) authorizes the following:  specified bills of  exchange or time drafts and corporate bonds and notes with 
specified ratings.  G.S. 147-69.2 authorizes the following:  general obligations of  other states; general obligations of  
North Carolina local governments; and obligations of  certain entities with specified ratings.

In accordance with the bond resolutions, bond proceeds and debt service funds are invested in obligations that will by 
their terms mature on or before the date funds are expected to be required for expenditure or withdrawal. 
 
G.S. 116-36(e) provides that the trustees of  the Endowment Fund shall be responsible for the prudent investment of  
the Fund in the exercise of  their sound discretion, without regard to any statute or rule of  law relating to the invest-
ment of  funds by fiduciaries but in compliance with any lawful condition placed by the donor upon that part of  the 
Endowment Fund to be invested.

Investments of  endowment funds including those invested in the Investment Fund, a University component unit, are 
subject to and restricted by G.S. 36E “Uniform Prudent Management of  Institutional Funds Act” (UPMIFA) and any 
requirements placed on them by contract or donor agreements.

Investments of  various funds may be pooled unless prohibited by statute or by terms of  the gift or contract.  The 
University utilizes investment pools to manage investments and distribute investment income.

Investments are subject to the following risks. 
 
Interest Rate Risk:  Interest rate risk is the risk the University may face should interest rate variances affect the fair value 
of  investments.  The University does not have a formal policy that addresses interest rate risk.
  
Credit Risk:  Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.  
The University does not have a formal policy that addresses credit risk.  

Custodial Credit Risk:  Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of  the failure of  the counterparty, the University 
will not be able to recover the value of  its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of  an outside 
party.  The University does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk.

Long-term Investment Pool - This is an internal investment pool that is utilized for the investment of  the endow-
ment funds.  Fund ownership is measured using the unit value method.  Under this method, each participating fund’s 
investment balance is determined based on market value.  The investment strategy, including the selection of  invest-
ment managers, is based on the directives of  the University’s Endowment Board.  This pool also participates in the 
Investment Fund.
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The following table presents the fair value of  investments by type and investments subject to interest rate risk at June 
30, 2009, for the Long-Term Investment Pool. 
 
LONG-TERM INVESTMENT POOL 
(EXCLUDES AMOUNTS REPORTED IN THE INVESTMENT FUND)
 

At June 30, 2009, investments in the Long-Term Investment Pool had the following credit quality distribution for 
securities with credit exposure (based on Moody’s and/or S&P ratings):  
 

       

 investment Maturities (in years)
 Fair less    More
 value than 1 1 to 5 6 to 10 than 10
 investment type
 Debt Securities
  U.S. treasuries $ 453,764 $ $ $ 249,534 $  204,230
  U.S. agencies  132,918   78,047  54,871  
  Mortgage pass throughs  1,226,401   19,118   71,504  1,135,779
  Collateralized Mortgage obligations  620,290    76,476  543,814
  State and local government  118,132      38,063  80,069
  asset-backed Securities  366,640     366,640
  Mutual bond Funds  8,733,156    8,733,156
  Money Market Mutual Funds  545,826  545,826
  Domestic Corporate bonds  1,094,078    338,962   440,079  315,037
  Foreign Corporate bonds  175,782  1,309 16,829   47,157  110,487

    13,466,987  $ 547,135  $ 452,956  $  9,710,840  $ 2,756,056
 other Securities
  pooled investments  272,097
  venture Capital  197,867

 total long-term investment pool $ 13,936,951

      bb/ba
 Fair aaa aa  bbb and 
 value aaa aa a baa below Unrated
 investment type
 Debt Securities:
 U.S. agencies $  132,918  $   132,918   $   $    $    $  $
 Mortgage pass throughs   1,226,401    1,226,401
 Collateralized Mortgage obligations   620,290    306,586    104,272   70,057    86,082    51,762  1,531 
            State and local government   118,132          22,681    85,153    10,298
 asset-backed Securities   366,640    147,206  41,937    44,187    19,031  114,279
 Mutual bond Funds   8,733,156             8,733,156
 Money Market Mutual Funds   545,826        287,712      258,114
 Domestic Corporate bonds   1,094,078        43,399    351,456    492,311    206,912
 Foreign Corporate bonds   175,782      105,895    15,357    32,658    21,872

    13,013,223   $   1,813,111   $   295,503   $   791,450   $   715,235   $   394,825 $ 9,003,099
 Debt Securities
 exempt From Credit Disclosures:
 U.S. treasuries  453,764

 total Debt Securities $  13,466,987
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Investment fund – The Investment Fund began operations in April 1999 and is classified as a non-rated 2a7-like 
governmental external investment pool that is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) 
as an investment company, but has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 
2a7 of  the Investment Company Act of  1940.  The Investment Fund is utilized as one of  the investment managers 
for the Long-Term Investment Pool and the North Carolina State University Foundation, Inc., a discretely presented 
component unit in the accompanying financial statements (the Investment Fund’s internal participants).  Other af-
filiated organizations not included in the University’s reporting entity represent the pool’s external participants.  The 
external portion of  the pool is presented in the accompanying financial statements as “Funds Held in Trust for Pool 
Participants.”

The Investment Fund is not subject to any formal oversight other than that provided by the Investment Fund Mem-
bers Board or its Board of  Directors.  The Members Board is responsible for adopting investment objectives and 
policies and for monitoring policy implementation and investment performance.  The Members Board has chosen not 
to make individual security selection decisions.  The Board of  Directors has the responsibility to oversee the allocation 
of  the Investment Fund’s portfolio among the asset classes, investment vehicles, and investment managers.

BNY Mellon is the custodian for the pool and provides the University with quarterly statements defining income and 
fair value information, which is then allocated among the fund’s participants.  Each participant holds Master Trust 
Units of  the Fund.  The unit price fluctuates based on the investment experience of  the investment pool.  There are 
no involuntary participants in the pool.  The University has not provided or obtained any legally binding guarantees 
during the period to support the value for the pool’s investments.  The annual financial report for the external invest-
ment pool may be obtained from the Foundations Accounting and Investments Office, Campus Box 7207, Raleigh, 
NC 27695, or by calling (919) 513-7149. 
 
The following table presents the fair value of  investments by type and investments subject to interest rate risk at June 
30, 2009, for the Investment Fund.  

 INVESTMENT FUND

At June 30, 2009, investments in the External Investment Pool had the following credit quality distribution for securi-
ties with credit exposure (based on Moody’s and/or S&P ratings):

  

 investment Maturities (in years)
               Fair              less     More
              value              than 1         1 to 5           6 to 10  than 10
 investment type
 Debt Securities:
 Money Market Mutual Funds $ 96 $ 96  $    $   $ 
 other Securities:
 UNC investment Fund  225,594,520
 investments in real estate  1,796,460
 limited partnerships  21,571,728
total external investment pool $ 248,962,804

                            Fair aaa
                            value  aaa
 investment type
 Debt Securities:
  Money Market Mutual Funds  $       96         $      96
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UnC Investment fund, LLC – At June 30, 2009, the University’s investments in the Investment Fund include 
$225,594,520 which represents the University’s equity position in the UNC Investment Fund, LLC (System Fund).  
The System Fund, an external investment pool that is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
and does not have a credit rating, had a weighted average maturity of  12.70 years as of  June 30, 2009.  Asset and 
ownership interests of  the System Fund are determined on a market unit valuation basis each month.  Investment 
risks associated with the System Fund are included in audited financial statements of  the UNC Investment Fund, LLC 
which may be obtained from the UNC CH Controller’s Office, Campus Box 1270, Chapel Hill, NC 27599-1270.

non-Pooled Investments - The following table presents the fair value of  investments by type and investments sub-
ject to interest rate risk at June 30, 2009, for the University’s non-pooled investments.  

NON-POOLED INVESTMENTS
 

At June 30, 2009, the University’s non-pooled investments had the following credit quality distribution for securities 
with credit exposure (based on Moody’s and/or S&P ratings):  

 

 investment Maturities (in years)
 Fair less    More
 value than 1 1 to 5 6 to 10 than 10
 investment type
 Debt Securities:
  Money Market Mutual Funds $ 1,239 $ 1,239 $  $  $ 
 other Securities:
  investments in real estate  20,932,938
  Domestic Stocks  1,096,017
  venture Capital  15,733
  Collections and Mineral rights  69,879
 total Non-pooled investments $ 22,115,806

 Fair aaa
 value aaa
investment type
 Debt Securities:
  Money Market Mutual Funds $ 1,239 $ 1,239
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total Investments - The following table presents the fair value of  the total investments at June 30, 2009:
 

              

Total investments include $48,061,096 held in the “Investment Fund” for the North Carolina State University Foun-
dation, Inc.  This amount is excluded from the University prepared financial statements and included in the accompa-
nying component unit financial statements.

note 3
enDoWment InVeStmentS

Investments of  the University’s endowment funds are pooled, unless required to be separately invested by the donor.  
If  a donor has not provided specific instructions, State law permits the Board of  Trustees to authorize for expendi-
ture the net appreciation, realized and unrealized, of  the investments of  the endowment funds.  Under the “Uniform 
Prudent Management of  Institutional Funds Act” (UPMIFA), authorized by the North Carolina General Assembly 
on March 19, 2009, the Board may also appropriate expenditures from eligible nonexpendable balances if  deemed 
prudent and necessary to meet program outcomes and for which such spending is not specifically prohibited by the 
donor agreements.  However, a majority of  the University’s endowment donor agreements prohibit spending of  non-
expendable balances and therefore the related nonexpendable balances are not eligible for expenditure.  During the 
year, the Board did not appropriate expenditures from eligible nonexpendable endowment funds.

Investment return of  the University’s endowment funds is predicated on the total return concept (yield plus apprecia-
tion).  Annual payouts from the University pooled endowment funds are determined by applying 4% (the Board ap-
proved spending rate) to the average market value of  the long-term investment pool (for a 20 quarter period), divided 
by the number of  investment units in the pool to determine the “average spending amount” per unit of  investment.  
The individual endowment fund payout or spending budget is then determined by applying the “average spending 
amount” to the number of  investment units held by the individual endowment fund.  To the extent that the total 
return for the current year exceeds the payout, the excess is added to principal.  If  current year earnings do not meet 
the payout requirements, the University uses accumulated income and appreciation from restricted, expendable net 
asset endowment balances to make up the difference.  At June 30, 2009, endowment net assets of  $82,082,517 were 
available to be spent, of  which $64,622,290 was restricted to specific purposes.

 investment type Fair value
 Debt Securities:
  U.S. treasuries $ 453,764 
  U.S. agencies  132,918
  Mortgage pass throughs  1,226,401
  Collateralized Mortgage obligations  620,290
  State and local government  118,132 
  asset-backed Securities   366,640
  Mutual bond Funds  8,733,156
  Money Market Mutual Funds  547,161 
  Domestic Corporate bonds  1,094,078
  Foreign Corporate bonds  175,782 
 other Securities:
  UNC investment Fund  225,594,520 
  investments in real estate  22,729,398 
  limited partnerships  21,571,728 
  pooled investments  272,097
  Domestic Stocks  1,096,017 
  venture Capital  213,600
  Collections & Mineral rights  69,879 
 total investments $ 285,015,561 
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During the current year, the University incurred investment losses that exceeded the available accumulated income 
and net appreciation for certain endowment funds.  These losses resulted in a reduction to the specific nonexpend-
able endowment fund balance.  At June 30, 2009, the amount of  accumulative investment losses reported against the 
nonexpendable endowment fund balance was $4,740,395.

note 4
ReCeIVaBLeS
Receivables at June 30, 2009, were as follows:
  less
  allowance 
 gross for Doubtful Net
 receivables accounts receivables
Current receivables:
 Students $ 5,939,204 $ 3,411,947 $ 2,527,257
 accounts  22,833,736  2,104,640  20,729,096
 intergovernmental  13,767,812    13,767,812
 interest on loans  732,802  273,063  459,739
  total Current receivables $ 43,273,554 $ 5,789,650 $ 37,483,904
Notes receivable:
 Notes receivable – Current:
  Federal loan programs $ 2,542,942 $ 15,866 $ 2,527,076
  institutional Student loan programs  315,875  5,031  310,844
  other  1,129,446    1,129,446
 total Notes receivable – Current $ 3,988,263 $ 20,897 $ 3,967,366
 Notes receivable - Noncurrent:
  Federal loan programs $ 10,000,437 $ 635,122 $ 9,365,315
  institutional Student loan programs  320,172  136,666  183,506
  other  1,120,414    1,120,414
 total Notes receivable – Noncurrent $ 11,441,023 $ 771,788 $ 10,669,235

note 5
CaPItaL aSSetS
A summary of changes in the capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2009, is presented as follows: 

 balance   balance
 July 1, 2008 increases Decreases June 30, 2009
Capital assets, Nondepreciable:
 land  $ 24,614,119 $ 2,300,309 $  $ 26,914,428
 Construction in progress 114,984,835 86,213,981 55,685,443 145,513,373
 total Capital assets, Nondepreciable 139,598,954 88,514,290 55,685,443 172,427,801
Capital assets, Depreciable:
 buildings 1,290,979,446 95,177,759 211,589 1,385,945,616
 Machinery and equipment 242,851,018 19,286,059 13,100,137 249,036,940
 general infrastructure 124,560,166 15,751,418  140,311,584
 total Capital assets, Depreciable 1,658,390,630 130,215,236 13,311,726 1,775,294,140
less accumulated Depreciation/amortization for:
 buildings 323,254,576 33,068,300 231,752 356,091,124
 Machinery and equipment 167,567,170 20,065,967 12,866,550 174,766,587
 general infrastructure 27,880,760 3,351,557  31,232,317
 total accumulated Depreciation 518,702,506 56,485,824 13,098,302 562,090,028
 total Capital assets, Depreciable, Net 1,139,688,124 73,729,412 213,424 1,213,204,112
Capital assets, Net $ 1,279,287,078 $ 162,243,702 $ 55,898,867 $ 1,385,631,913
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note 6
aCCoUntS PaYaBLe anD  
aCCRUeD LIaBILIteS
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2009, were as follows:
 amount

accounts payable $ 26,563,432
accrued payroll  8,609,688
Contract retainage  5,787,125
other  484,458
total accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 41,444,703

note 7
SHoRt-teRm DeBt – 
CommeRCIaL PaPeR PRoGRam

The University has available Commercial Paper Program financing for short-term credit up to $100,000,000 to 
finance capital construction projects. The University’s available funds are pledged to the Commercial Paper Program 
financing with the anticipation of converting to general revenue bond financing in the future. As of June 30, 2009, 
$20,000,000 in Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper was outstanding.

Short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows:

 balance   balance
 July 1, 2008 Draws repayments June 30, 2009

Commercial paper program $ 75,500,000     $   30,000,000  $ 85,500,000 $ 20,000,000

note 8
LonG-teRm LIaBILItIeS

a.     Changes in Long-term Liabilities – A summary of changes in the long-term liabilities for the year ended     
June 30, 2009, is presented as follows:

 balance   balance Current
 July 1, 2008 additions reductions June 30, 2009 portion

bonds payable $ 184,225,000 $ 93,560,000 $ 31,485,000 $ 246,300,000 $ 9,080,000
add/Deduct premium/Discount  6,861,912  572,087  596,464  6,837,535
 total bonds payable  191,086,912   94,132,087  32,081,464  253,137,535  9,080,000 
Notes payable  905,000  4,089,095    4,994,095   
Capital leases payable  50,461  496,868  33,641   513,688  168,779 
Compensated absences  56,093,368  33,906,506   33,484,081   56,515,793  2,790,340
total long-term liabilities $ 248,135,741 $ 132,624,556 $ 65,599,186 $ 315,161,111 $ 12,039,119

Additional information regarding capital lease obligations is included in Note 9.
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B.    Bonds Payable - The University was indebted for bonds payable for the purposes shown in the following           
table:

   interest Final original principal principal  See
   rate/ Maturity amount paid through outstanding table
 purpose Series ranges Date of issue June 30, 2009 June 30, 2009 below

CeNteNNial CaMpUS SySteM

Centennial Campus projects 1997a 6.55-7.04%         12/15/2010        $ 7,765,000  $ 6,620,000  $ 1,145,000 1

geNeral reveNUe

refund housing System Series l & M 2002b 2-5% 10/01/2014  8,800,000   3,950,000   4,850,000
Centennial Campus projects 2002C 2.75-6.45% 10/01/2013  7,160,000   3,605,000   3,555,000  
housing System projects/

Doak Field projects 2003a 2-5% 10/01/2018  26,735,000   565,000   26,170,000
housing System projects/

Doak Field projects 2003b 3.54%* swap 10/01/2027  45,660,000   1,575,000   44,085,000
various Construction projects 2005a 3-5% 10/01/2025  81,615,000   8,680,000   72,935,000
various Construction projects 2008a 3.86%*swap 10/01/2028  66,605,000    66,605,000
various Construction projects 2008b 3-5% 10/01/2020  26,955,000    26,955,000

 total general revenue     263,530,000   18,375,000   245,155,000

total bonds payable (principal only)    $ 271,295,000 $ 24,995,000   246,300,000 

less: Unamortized Discount         24,767 
plus: Unamortized premium         6,862,302 

total bonds payable        $ 253,137,535 

* For variable rate debt, interest rates in effect at June 30, 2009 are included.
 For variable rate debt with interest rate swaps, the synthetic fixed rates are included.

The University has pledged future revenues, net of specific operating expenses, to repay revenue bonds as shown in the 
table below:
   total Future  Current year revenues Current year estimate of %
 ref revenue Source revenues pledged Net of expenses principal & interest of revenues pledged

 (1) Centennial Campus revenues $ 1,206,424 $ 5,940,805 $ 893,240 9%

C. Demand Bonds - Included in bonds payable are several variable rate demand bond issues.  Demand bonds 
are securities that contain a “put” feature that allows bondholders to demand payment before the maturity of  the debt 
upon proper notice to the University’s remarketing or paying agents.

With regard to the following demand bonds, the issuer has entered into take-out agreements, which would convert the 
demand bonds not successfully remarketed into another form of  long-term debt.

the north Carolina State University at Raleigh General Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B

On June 20, 2003 the University issued tax-exempt variable rate revenue demand bonds in the amount of  $45,660,000 
that have a final maturity date of  October 1, 2027.  The bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption 
that began on October 1, 2004.  The University's proceeds of  this issuance were used to pay a portion of  the costs of  
certain improvements on the campus of  the University, to refund certain debt previously incurred for that purpose, 
and to pay the costs incurred in connection with the issuance of  the 2003B bonds.

While bearing interest at a weekly rate, the bonds are subject to purchase on demand with seven days notice and deliv-
ery to the paying agent, The Bank of  New York Mellon.  Upon notice from the paying agent, the remarketing agent, 
Wachovia Bank, N.A., has agreed to exercise its best efforts to remarket the bonds for which a notice of  purchase has 
been received.
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Under a Standby Bond Purchase Agreement (Agreement) between the Board of  Governors of  the University of  
North Carolina and Bayerische Landesbank, a Liquidity Facility has been established for the Trustee (The Bank of  
New York Mellon) to draw amounts sufficient to pay the purchase price and accrued interest on bonds delivered for 
purchase when remarketing proceeds or other funds are not available.  This Agreement requires a commitment fee 
equal to 0.13% of  the available commitment, payable quarterly in arrears, beginning on July 1, 2003 and on each Oc-
tober 1, January 1, April 1, and July 1 thereafter until the expiration date or the termination date of  the Agreement.

Under the Agreement, any bonds purchased through the Liquidity Facility become Liquidity Provider Bonds and 
shall, from the date of  such purchase and while they are Liquidity Provider Bonds, bear interest at the Liquidity 
Provider rate (the greater of  the bank prime commercial lending rate and federal funds rate plus 0.5%).  Upon re-
marketing of  Liquidity Provider Bonds and the receipt of  the sales price by the Liquidity Provider, such bonds are 
no longer considered Liquidity Provider Bonds.  Payment of  the interest on the Liquidity Provider Bonds is due the 
first business day of  each month in which Liquidity Provider Bonds are outstanding.  At June 30, 2009, there were 
no Liquidity Provider Bonds held by the Liquidity Facility.  The original Liquidity Facility expiration date has been 
extended and is scheduled to expire on November 30, 2015, unless otherwise extended based on the terms of  the 
Agreement.

Upon expiration or termination of  the Agreement, the University is required to redeem (purchase) the Liquidity 
Provider Bonds held by the Liquidity Facility in 12 quarterly installments, beginning the first business day of  January, 
April, July, or October, whichever first occurs on or following the Purchase Date along with accrued interest at the 
Liquidity Provider rate. In the event the entire issue of  $44,085,000 of  demand bonds was “put” and not resold, the 
University would be required to pay $15 million a year for three years under this agreement assuming a 3.25% inter-
est rate.

the north Carolina State University at Raleigh General Revenue Bonds, Series 2008a

On July 10, 2008 the University issued tax-exempt variable rate revenue demand bonds in the amount of  $66,605,000 
that have a final maturity date of  October 1, 2028.  The bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption that 
begins on October 1, 2014.  The University’s proceeds of  this issuance were used to pay a portion of  the costs of  
certain improvements on the campus of  the University, to refund certain debt previously incurred for that purpose, 
and to pay the costs incurred in connection with the issuance of  the 2008A bonds.

While bearing interest at a weekly rate, the bonds are subject to purchase on demand with seven days notice and 
delivery to the paying agent, The Bank of  New York Mellon.  Upon notice from the paying agent, the remarketing 
agent, Citigroup Global Markets Inc, has agreed to exercise its best efforts to remarket the bonds for which a notice 
of  purchase has been received.

Under a Standby Bond Purchase Agreement (Agreement) between the Board of  Governors of  the University of  
North Carolina and Bank of  America, N.A., a Liquidity Facility has been established for the Trustee (The Bank of  
New York Mellon) to draw amounts sufficient to pay the purchase price and accrued interest on bonds delivered for 
purchase when remarketing proceeds or other funds are not available.  This Agreement requires a commitment fee 
equal to 0.20% of  the available commitment, payable quarterly in arrears, beginning on October 1, 2008 and on each 
October 1, January 1, April 1 and July 1 thereafter until the expiration date or the termination date of  the Agree-
ment.
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Under the Agreement, any bonds purchased through the Liquidity Facility become Bank Bonds and shall, from the 
date of  such purchase and while they are Bank Bonds, bear interest at the Base Rate (the greater of  the bank prime 
commercial lending rate and federal funds rate plus 3.0%) for 30 days.  For the period of  31 through 60 days after 
purchase, the Bank Bonds bear interest at the Base Rate plus 1.0%.  Upon remarketing of  Bank Bonds and the receipt 
of  the sales price by the Liquidity Provider, such bonds are no longer considered Bank Bonds.  Payment of  the inter-
est on the Bank Bonds is due the first business day of  each month in which Bank Bonds are outstanding.  At June 30, 
2009, there were no Bank Bonds held by the Liquidity Facility.  The Liquidity Facility is scheduled to expire on July 
10, 2011, unless otherwise extended based on the terms of  the Agreement.

After the purchase of  the Bank Bonds, or expiration or termination of  the Agreement, the University is required to 
redeem (purchase) the Bank Bonds held by the Liquidity Facility in six semi-annual installments, beginning the first 
business day of  the month which next occurs on or following 61 days after the Purchase Date along with accrued in-
terest at the Bank Bond rate plus 2.0%. In the event the entire issue of  $66,605,000 of  demand bonds was “put” and 
not resold, the University would be required to pay $24 million a year for three years under this agreement assuming 
a 5.25% interest rate.

INTEREST RATE SWAPS:

Objective.  In order to protect against the potential of  rising interest rates, the University entered into two separate pay-
fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps at a cost anticipated to be less than what the University would have paid to 
issue fixed-rate debt.

Terms, fair values, and credit risk.  The University’s swap agreements contain scheduled reductions to outstanding no-
tional amounts that are expected to approximately follow scheduled or anticipated reductions in the associated bonds 
payable category.  The terms, fair values, and credit ratings of  the outstanding swaps as of  June 30, 2009 were as fol-
lows (dollars in thousands):
        Counterparty
     variable  Swap Credit rating
 associated Notional effective Fixed rate rate  termination Moody’s/S&p/
 bond issue amounts Date paid received Fair values Date Fitch

     
general revenue 2003b  24,655  6/20/03 3.54% 75% of libor  $(1,782)  10/1/27 aa3 / a+ / a+

general revenue 2008a  50,000 9/01/08 3.86% SiFMa  (4,305) 10/1/26 aa1/aa-/aa-

     
total $ 74,655     $ (6,087)

Because rates have changed since the effective dates of  the swaps, both of  the swaps have a negative fair value as 
of  June 30, 2009.  The negative fair value may be countered by a reduction in total interest payments required under 
the variable-rate bonds, creating lower synthetic interest rates.  Because the coupons on the University’s variable-rate 
bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the bonds do not have corresponding fair value increases.  The fair values are 
the market values as of  June 30, 2009.

As of  June 30, 2009, the University was not exposed to credit risk related to positively valued swaps.  The swap agree-
ments require termination should the University’s or the counterparty’s credit rating fall below either Baa2 as issued by 
Moody’s or BBB as issued by S&P or Fitch. Also, under the terms of  the swap agreements, should one party become 
insolvent or otherwise default on its obligations, provisions permit the nondefaulting party to accelerate and terminate 
all outstanding transactions.  To mitigate the potential for credit risk, if  the counterparty’s credit quality falls below 
A3 as determined by Moody’s or A- as determined by S&P, the swap will be collateralized by the counterparty with 
cash, U.S. government or agency securities.  If  the counterparty is required to collateralize, then the collateral will be 
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posted with a third party custodian or secured party.  The swap agreements entered into by the University are held 
with separate counterparties.  All the counterparties are rated A+ or better.

Basis risk:  The University is exposed to basis risk on the swaps when the variable payment received is based on an 
index other than Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA).  Should the relationship between 
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) and SIFMA move to convergence, the expected cost savings may not be 
realized.  As of  June 30, 2009, the SIFMA rate was 0.35%, whereas 75% of  LIBOR was 0.23%.

Termination risk:  The University or the counterparty may terminate any of  the swaps if  the other party fails to per-
form under the terms of  the contract.  If  any of  the swaps are terminated, the associated variable-rate bonds would 
no longer carry synthetic interest rates.  Also, if  at the time of  termination the swap has a negative fair value, the 
University would be liable to the counterparty for that amount.

Future swaps: The University has also entered into a future dated interest rate swap agreement for $22,382,500 to be 
effective March 1, 2017, on the General Revenue Series 2008A bonds.

D. annual Requirements - The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on the long-term obligations 
at June 30, 2009, are as follows:

   revenue bonds payable   Notes payable
    interest rate
 Fiscal year principal interest Swaps, Net principal interest

 2010  $ 9,080,000 $ 6,395,607 $ 2,571,649 $  $ 40,952
 2011   8,855,000  6,026,387  2,571,649    40,952
 2012   11,925,000  5,558,603  2,571,649  4,994,095  20,476
 2013   12,650,000  5,037,295  2,571,649    
 2014   13,300,000  4,486,881  2,571,649
 2015-2019  61,210,000  14,920,565  11,846,965
 2020-2024  68,890,000  6,438,448  8,158,858
 2025-2029  60,390,000  837,901  1,654,381
 total requirements $ 246,300,000 $ 49,701,687 $ 34,518,449 $ 4,994,095 $ 102,380

Interest on the variable rate 2003B revenue bonds is calculated at .23% at June 30,2009
Interest on the variable rate 2008A revenue bonds is calculated at .30% at June 30, 2009

This schedule also includes the debt service requirements for debt associated with interest rate swaps.  More detailed information about 
interest rate swaps is presented in Note 8C.

e. Bond Defeasance - The University has extinguished long-term debt obligations by the issuance of  new long- 
term debt instruments as follows:

On July 10, 2008, North Carolina State University issued $26,955,000 in North Carolina State University General Rev-
enue Bonds, Series 2008B with an average interest rate of  3.59%.  The bonds were issued for a current refunding of  
$5,520,000 of  outstanding University of  North Carolina System Pool Revenue Bonds, Series 1998B with an average 
interest rate of  5%. 
 
On July 10, 2008, North Carolina State University issued $26,955,000 in North Carolina State University Gener-
al Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B with an average interest rate of  3.59%.  The bonds were issued to advance re-
fund $3,155,000 of  outstanding University of  North Carolina System Pool Revenue Bonds, Series 2000 with an 
average interest rate of  5.35%.  The net proceeds of  the refunding bonds along with other resources were used to 
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purchase U.S. government securities.  These securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future 
debt service on the refunded bonds.  As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability 
has been removed from the statement of  net assets.  Both the current refunding and this advance refunding was un-
dertaken to reduce total debt service payments by $152,159 over the next 12 years and resulted in an economic gain 
of  $128,368.  At June 30, 2009, the outstanding balance was $3,155,000 for the defeased University of  North Carolina 
System Pool Revenue Bonds.

f. notes Payable - The University’s Partnership Corporation has available a revolving commercial note up to 
$5,000,000 to finance construction of  the Lonnie Poole Golf  Course on Centennial Campus.  This is an unsecured 
line of  credit and it is expected that pledges received and course revenues will be used to retire the note by the De-
cember 31, 2011 due date.

   interest Final original principal principal
  Financial rate/ Maturity amount paid through outstanding
 purpose institution ranges Date of issue June 30, 2009 June 30, 2009

lonnie poole golf Course Suntrust variable 12/31/2011 $ 4,994,095           $                        $ 4,994,095

note 9
LeaSe oBLIGatIonS

a.       Capital Lease obligations – Capital lease obligations relating to equipment are recorded at the present value 
of the minimum lease payments. Future minimum lease payments under capital lease obligations consist of the 
following at June 30, 2009:

 Fiscal year amount

 2010 $ 171,783

 2011  151,959

 2012  136,336

 2013  72,409

 2014  57,323 
 total Minimum lease payments  589,810 
 amount representing interest (3.74% rate of interest)  76,122
 present value of Future lease payments $ 513,688

Machinery and equipment acquired under capital lease amounted to $898,433 at June 30, 2009.

B. operating Lease obligations – The University entered into operating leases for equipment and property 
rental. Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases consist of  the following at June 30, 
2009:

 Fiscal year amount

 2010 $  5,371,415
 2011  4,321,467
 2012  3,718,663
 2013  3,681,035
 2014  3,388,554
 total Minimum lease payments $ 20,481,134

         Rental expense for all operating leases during the year was $5,079,634.
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note 10
ReVenUeS

A summary of eliminations and allowances by revenue classification is presented as follows:

   internal less less
  gross Sales Scholarship allowance for Net
  revenues eliminations Discounts Uncollectibles revenues

operating revenues:

 Student tuition and Fees $ 209,649,436  $ 390,681  $ 32,929,860  $ 803,996  $ 175,524,899 
 other revenues $ 19,858,739  $ 5,301,844  $  $ 582,499 $ 13,974,396 
 Sales and Services $ 228,820,026  $ 47,646,995  $ 8,592,061  $ 106,028 $ 172,474,942

note 11
oPeRatInG eXPenSeS BY fUnCtIon

The University’s operating expenses by functional classification are presented as follows:

 Salaries Supplies  Scholarships
 and  and   and 
 benefits Materials Services Fellowships Utilities Depreciation total

instruction $ 285,051,344  $ 20,128,281  $ 26,753,787  $  $ 1,190 $  $ 331,934,602
research  153,078,513   19,076,840   46,314,180     508,681    218,978,214
public Service  88,089,341   9,473,359   24,252,448     328,527    122,143,675
academic Support  40,991,764   11,966,059   15,789,141     15,561    68,762,525
Student Services  14,109,833   1,539,825   4,645,815     135,701    20,431,174
institutional Support  53,977,668   1,613,112   11,539,789     267,067    67,397,636
operations and
Maintenance of plant  35,127,575   5,460,560   8,973,873     29,493,774    79,055,782
Student Financial aid  1,713,960   329,280   475,707   32,366,944      34,885,891
auxiliary enterprises  48,432,165   31,105,304   37,507,660     5,258,510    122,303,639
Depreciation            56,485,824  56,485,824

 total
 operating expenses $ 720,572,163  $ 100,692,620  $ 176,252,400  $ 32,366,944  $ 36,009,011 $ 56,485,824 $ 1,122,378,962

note 12
PenSIon PLanS

a. Retirement Plans - Each permanent full-time employee, as a condition of  employment, is a member of  ei-
ther the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System or the Optional Retirement Program.  Eligible employees 
can elect to participate in the Optional Retirement Program at the time of  employment, otherwise they are automati-
cally enrolled in the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System.

The Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plan established by the State to provide pension benefits for employees of  the State, its component units and local 
boards of  education.  The plan is administered by the North Carolina State Treasurer.

Benefit and contribution provisions for the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System are established by 
North Carolina General Statutes 135-5 and 135-8 and may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.  
Employer and member contribution rates are set each year by the North Carolina General Assembly based on annual 
actuarial valuations.  For the year ended June 30, 2009, these rates were set at 3.36% of  covered payroll for employers 
and 6% of  covered payroll for members.

For the current fiscal year, the University had a total payroll of  $628,944,092, of  which $313,588,252 was covered 
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under the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System.  Total employer and employee contributions for pen-
sion benefits for the year were $10,536,565 and $18,815,295, respectively.  

Required employer contribution rates for the years ended June 30, 2008, and 2007, were 3.05% and 2.66%, respectively, 
while employee contributions were 6% each year.  The University made 100% of  its annual required contributions for 
the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007, which were $10,536,565, $9,039,835, and $7,478,544, respectively.

The Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System’s financial information is included in the State of  North 
Carolina’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  An electronic version of  this report is available by accessing the 
North Carolina Office of  the State Controller’s Internet home page http://www.ncosc.net/ and clicking on “Proceed 
directly to OSC’s index page,” then “Reports,” or by calling the State Controller’s Financial Reporting Section at (919) 
981-5454.

The Optional Retirement Program (Program) is a defined contribution retirement plan that provides retirement ben-
efits with options for payments to beneficiaries in the event of  the participant’s death.  Administrators and eligible 
faculty of  the University may join the Program instead of  the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System.  
The Board of  Governors of  The University of  North Carolina is responsible for the administration of  the Program 
and designates the companies authorized to offer investment products or the trustee responsible for the investment 
of  contributions under the Program and approves the form and contents of  the contracts and trust agreements.

Participants in the Program are immediately vested in the value of  employee contributions.  The value of  employer 
contributions is vested after five years of  participation in the Program.  Participants become eligible to receive distri-
butions when they terminate employment or retire.

Participant eligibility and contributory requirements are established by General Statute 135-5.1.  Employer and mem-
ber contribution rates are set each year by the North Carolina General Assembly.  For the year ended June 30, 2009, 
these rates were set at 6.84% of  covered payroll for employers and 6% of  covered payroll for members.  The Univer-
sity assumes no liability other than its contribution.

For the current fiscal year, the University had a total payroll of  $628,944,092, of  which $212,674,095 was covered 
under the Optional Retirement Program.  Total employer and employee contributions for pension benefits for the 
year were $14,546,908 and $12,760,446, respectively.

B. Deferred Compensation and Supplemental Retirement Income Plans - IRC Section 457 Plan - The 
State of  North Carolina offers its permanent employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 through the North Carolina Public Employee Deferred Compensation Plan (the 
Plan).  The Plan permits each participating employee to defer a portion of  his or her salary until future years.  The de-
ferred compensation is available to employees upon separation from service, death, disability, retirement, or financial 
hardships if  approved by the Board of  Trustees of  the Plan.  The Board, a part of  the North Carolina Department of  
Administration, maintains a separate fund for the exclusive benefit of  the participating employees and their beneficia-
ries, the North Carolina Public Employee Deferred Compensation Trust Fund.  The Board also contracts with an external third 
party to perform certain administrative requirements and to manage the trust fund’s assets.  All costs of  administering 
and funding the Plan are the responsibility of  the Plan participants.  No costs are incurred by the University.  The 
voluntary contributions by employees amounted to $2,743,795 for the year ended June 30, 2009.

IRC Section 401(k) Plan - All members of  the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System and the Optional 
Retirement Program are eligible to enroll in the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan, a defined contribution plan, 
created under Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k).  All costs of  administering the Plan are the responsibility of  the 
Plan participants.  No costs are incurred by the University except for a 5% employer contribution for the University’s 
law enforcement officers, which is mandated under General Statute 143-166.30(e).  Total employer contributions on
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behalf  of  University law enforcement officers for the year ended June 30, 2009, were $130,047.  The voluntary con-
tributions by employees amounted to $4,514,122 for the year ended June 30, 2009.

IRC Section 403(b) and 403(b)(7) Plans - Eligible University employees can participate in tax sheltered annuity plans 
created under Internal Revenue Code Sections 403(b) and 403(b)(7).  The employee’s eligible contributions, made 
through salary reduction agreements, are exempt from federal and State income taxes until the annuity is received 
or the contributions are withdrawn.  These plans are exclusively for employees of  universities and certain charitable 
and other nonprofit institutions.  All costs of  administering and funding these plans are the responsibility of  the 
Plan participants.  No costs are incurred by the University.  The voluntary contributions by employees amounted to 
$10,513,428 for the year ended June 30, 2009.

C. federal employment Retirement - The Federal Retirement System is a multiple-employer retirement sys-
tem and is composed of  three retirement programs:  the Civil Service Retirement System (CSRS) for participants 
employed prior to January 1, 1987, the Federal Employees Retirement System (FERS) for participants employed after 
January 1, 1987, and the Civil Service Retirement Offset System for reemployed CSRS employees.

North Carolina Cooperative Extension employees with federal appointments prior to January 1, 1987 participate in 
the Civil Service Retirement System.  Currently, 140 employees participate in CSRS.  Participating employees are re-
quired by federal statute to contribute 7% of  salary and the University 7% of  salary to CSRS.  In addition, the CSRS 
employees may contribute to the Thrift Savings Plan (a defined contribution plan managed by the Federal Retirement 
Thrift Investment Board) up to the annual IRS annual elective limits with no agency matching contributions.  Total 
employee and employer contributions for CSRS for the year ended June 30, 2009, was $784,169 and $819,392 respec-
tively.  Employees covered under CSRS contributed $78,231 to the Thrift Savings Plan.

Under the Federal Employees Retirement System (FERS), employees are required to contribute 0.8% of  salary and 
the University 11.2%.  Currently, seven employees participate in FERS.  In addition, the FERS employees may con-
tribute to the Thrift Savings Plan up to the annual IRS annual elective limits with an agency matching contribution 
of  up to 5% depending upon the employee’s contribution.  Total employee and employer contributions for the year 
ended June 30, 2009, were $7,073 and $99,023 respectively.  For employees covered under FERS the total employee 
and employer contributions to the Thrift Savings Plan for the year ended June 30, 2009, were $79,657 and $42,473 
respectively.

note 13
otHeR PoStemPLoYment BenefItS

A.	 Health	Benefits - The University participates in the Comprehensive Major Medical Plan (the Plan), a cost- 
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit health care plan that provides postemployment health insurance to eligible 
former employees.  Eligible former employees include long-term disability beneficiaries of  the Disability Income Plan 
of  North Carolina and retirees of  the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System or the Optional Retirement 
Program.  Coverage eligibility varies depending on years of  contributory membership service in their retirement sys-
tem prior to disability or retirement.

The Plan’s benefit and contribution provisions are established by North Carolina General Statute 135-7 and Chapter 
135, Article 3A, of  the General Statutes and may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.  The 
Plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases.

By General Statute, a Retiree Health Benefit Fund (the Fund) has been established as a fund in which accumulated 
contributions from employers and any earnings on those contributions shall be used to provide health benefits to 
retired and disabled employees and applicable beneficiaries.  By statute, the Fund is administered by the Board of  
Trustees of  the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System and contributions to the fund are irrevocable.  
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Also by law, Fund assets are dedicated to providing benefits to retired and disabled employees and applicable benefi-
ciaries and are not subject to the claims of  creditors of  the employers making contributions to the Fund.  Contribu-
tion rates to the Fund, which are intended to finance benefits and administrative expenses on a pay-as-you-go basis, 
are determined by the General Assembly in the Appropriations Bill.

For the current fiscal year the University contributed 4.1% of  the covered payroll under the Teachers’ and State 
Employees’ Retirement System and the Optional Retirement Program to the Fund.  Required contribution rates for 
the years ended June 30, 2008, and 2007, were 4.1% and 3.8%, respectively.  The University made 100% of  its an-
nual required contributions to the Plan for the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007, which were $21,576,756, 
$20,320,873, and $17,446,423, respectively.  The University assumes no liability for retiree health care benefits pro-
vided by the programs other than its required contribution.

Additional detailed information about these programs can be located in the State of  North Carolina’s Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report.  An electronic version of  this report is available by accessing the North Carolina Office of  the 
State Controller’s Internet home page http://www.ncosc.net/ and clicking on “Proceed directly to OSC’s index page,” 
then “Reports,” or by calling the State Controller’s Financial Reporting Section at (919) 981-5454.

B. Disability Income - The University participates in the Disability Income Plan of  North Carolina (DIPNC), 
a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan, to provide short-term and long-term disability benefits to 
eligible members of  the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System and the Optional Retirement Program.  
Benefit and contribution provisions are established by Chapter 135, Article 6, of  the General Statutes, and may be 
amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.  The plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement 
benefit increases.

Disability income benefits are funded by actuarially determined employer contributions that are established in the Ap-
propriations Bill by the General Assembly.  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the University made a statutory 
contribution of  .52% of  covered payroll under the Teachers’ and State Employees’ Retirement System and the Op-
tional Retirement Program to the DIPNC.  Required contribution rates for the years ended June 30, 2008, and 2007, 
were .52% and .52%, respectively.  The University made 100% of  its annual required contributions to the DIPNC for 
the years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007, which were $2,736,564, $2,577,281, and $2,387,405, respectively.  The 
University assumes no liability for long-term disability benefits under the Plan other than its contribution.

Additional detailed information about the DIPNC is disclosed in the State of  North Carolina’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report.

note 14
RISK manaGement

The University is exposed to various risks of  loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of  assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  These exposures to loss are handled via a combination of  
methods, including participation in State-administered insurance programs, purchase of  commercial insurance, and 
self-retention of  certain risks.  There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year 
and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of  the past three fiscal years.

Tort claims of  up to $1,000,000 are retained under the authority of  the State Tort Claims Act.  In addition, the State 
provides excess public officers’ and employees’ liability insurance up to $10,000,000 via contract with a private insur-
ance company.  The University pays the premium, based on a composite rate, directly to the private insurer.
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The University is required to maintain fire and lightning coverage on all State-owned buildings and contents through 
the State Property Fire Insurance Fund (Fund), an internal service fund of  the State.  Such coverage is provided at 
no cost to the University for operations supported by the State’s General Fund.  Other operations not supported by 
the State’s General Fund are charged for the coverage.  Losses covered by the Fund are subject to a $5,000 per oc-
currence deductible. University departments, as an individual business decision, may also purchase through the Fund 
primary extended coverage for buildings and contents.  Coverage may also be purchased through the Fund for theft, 
vandalism, sprinkler leakage, or all-risk perils. University departments also have the option to purchase all-risk cover-
age for computers and “miscellaneous equipment” on a scheduled basis.  Extended coverage for buildings and equip-
ment, flood insurance, as well as other insurance coverage for which departments have not purchased such insurance 
through the Fund are considered retained risks by the University.

All State-owned vehicles are covered by a liability insurance program administered through a private insurance com-
pany and handled by the North Carolina Department of  Insurance.  The liability coverage limits for losses are 
$1,000,000 per claim and $10,000,000 per occurrence.  The University pays premiums to the North Carolina Depart-
ment of  Insurance for the coverage.  

The University is protected for losses from employee dishonesty and computer fraud.  This coverage is with a private 
insurance company and is procured through the State’s Agent of  Record and approved by the North Carolina De-
partment of  Insurance.  The University is charged a premium by the private insurance company.  Coverage limit is 
$1,000,000 per occurrence.  The applicable deductible is $25,000 per occurrence.

The University purchased other authorized coverage from private insurance companies through the North Carolina 
Department of  Insurance and the State’s Agent of  Record.  The types of  insurance policies purchased include: Medi-
cal Professional Liability, Veterinary Professional Liability, Fine Arts Property, Master Crime, Inland Marine Prop-
erty for Musical Instruments, Campers Accident and Sickness, Athletic Accident, Boiler and Machinery, Watercraft, 
Oceanographic Equipment, and Nuclear Energy Liability.

University employees and retirees are provided comprehensive major medical care benefits.  Coverage is funded by 
contributions to the State Health Plan (Plan), a pension and other employee benefit trust fund of  the State of  North 
Carolina.  The Plan has contracted with third parties to process claims.

The North Carolina Workers’ Compensation Program provides benefits to workers injured on the job.  All employ-
ees of  the State and its component units are included in the program.  When an employee is injured, the University’s 
primary responsibility is to arrange for and provide the necessary treatment for work related injury.  The University is 
responsible for paying medical benefits and compensation in accordance with the North Carolina Workers’ Compen-
sation Act.  The University retains the risk for workers’ compensation.

Term life insurance (death benefits) of  $25,000 to $50,000 is provided to eligible workers.  This Death Benefit Plan 
is administered by the State Treasurer and funded via employer contributions.  The employer contribution rate was 
.16% for the current fiscal year.

Additional details on the State-administered risk management programs are disclosed in the State’s Comprehensive An-
nual Financial Report, issued by the Office of  the State Controller.
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note 15
CommItmentS anD ContInGenCIeS

a. Commitments - The University has established an encumbrance system to track its outstanding commit-
ments on construction projects and other purchases.  Outstanding commitments on construction contracts were 
$58,479,625 at June 30, 2009.  

The University has amended the Use Agreement for the RBC Center with the Centennial Authority (a related party) 
and therein agreed to make scheduled capital contributions totaling $6,000,000 to the Authority’s Building Enhance-
ment Fund over a 15 year period.  The total outstanding commitment on this agreement was $5,550,000 as of  June 
30, 2009.

B. Pending Litigation and Claims – As previously reported, the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
filed a civil action against the University pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation 
and Liability Act.  The complaint sought relief  that would cause the University to enter into remediation of  a hazard-
ous waste site known as “Lot 86.”  The University is involved in ongoing discussions and negotiations with the EPA 
concerning the appropriate means for addressing the remediation.  A Consent Decree executed by North Carolina 
State University and the EPA has been approved by the Court.  Remedial clean-up pursuant to the Consent Decree 
continues.  The remediation costs remaining are estimated to be around $1,000,000.

As previously reported, the NC School Boards Association, et. al. filed a civil action against various state officials in 
their official capacity seeking a judicial determination as to whether the state constitution requires certain monetary 
payments collected by state agencies to be paid to the local county school funds. On July 1, 2005, the NC Supreme 
Court held in favor of  the school boards with regard to parking fines.  The matter was remanded back to the trial 
court for disposition in accordance with the Superior Court’s decision.  On August 8, 2008, the Wake County Supe-
rior Court issued judgment that the estimated amounts collected from January 1, 1996, to June 30, 2005, by UNC 
Campuses belong and should have been paid to the public schools of  the State by payment to the State’s Civil Penalty 
and Forfeiture Fund. The manner in which the judgment will be settled is uncertain and is to be determined by the 
North Carolina General Assembly.  At issue for NC State University is approximately $6,047,286 in transportation 
fines collected since January 1, 1996, to June 30, 2005.  Of  this amount, the university has recorded a liability for 
$2,273,817 as instructed by Senate Bill 202, Session Law 2009-451 (Appropriations Act of  2009) and signed by the 
Governor on August 7, 2009.  Since July 2005, the University has been forwarding collections, less collection costs, 
to the Office of  State Budget and Management on a monthly basis.

As previously reported, on September 16, 2005, Ward Transformer Company, Inc. and related entities (collectively 
the “Ward Performing Parties”) entered into a Settlement Agreement with the United States Environmental Protec-
tion Agency (“EPA”).  In the Agreement, the Ward Performing Parties agreed to fund and carry out a removal action 
to address PCB contamination at and in the vicinity of  the 11 acre Ward Transformer facility on Mount Herman 
Road near the Raleigh-Durham International Airport.  It is currently estimated that the removal action will involve 
the excavation and onsite treatment or offsite disposal of  approximately 60,000 cubic yards, or about 220,000 tons, 
of  PCB contaminated soils.  The removal action will also address the PCB contaminated transformer repair building, 
oil storage tank farm, and water treatment building.  Current estimates indicate that the costs may be in the range 
upwards of  $20 million.  The Ward Performing Parties have notified NC State that they believe that the University 
is responsible for some of  the PCB contamination because NC State allegedly had Ward repair and refurbish trans-
formers during the 1960’s through the 1990’s.  Our personnel in facilities and in environmental health are of  the 
opinion that NC State’s responsibility in the clean-up for Phase I is $133,000.  We have no information what the li-
ability may be for Phase II and for Phase OUI and OUII.
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The University is a party to other litigation and claims in the ordinary course of  its operations.  Since it is not pos-
sible to predict the ultimate outcome of  these matters, no provision for any liability has been made in the financial 
statements.  University management is of  the opinion that the liability, if  any, for any of  these matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on the financial position of  the University.  

note 16
ReLateD PaRtIeS

foundations - There are 11 separately incorporated nonprofit foundations associated with the University.  These 
foundations are the North Carolina Agricultural Foundation, Inc., North Carolina State University Foundation, Inc., 
North Carolina Tobacco Foundation, Inc., North Carolina State University Physical and Mathematical Sciences Foun-
dation, Inc., North Carolina Engineering Foundation, Inc., North Carolina Veterinary Medical Foundation, Inc., NC 
State Natural Resources Foundation, Inc., North Carolina Textile Foundation, Inc., NC State Student Aid Associa-
tion, Inc., Friends of  NC State Baseball, LLC and the North Carolina State Alumni Association, Inc. 
 
These organizations serve as the primary fundraising arm of  the University through which individuals, corporations, 
and other organizations support University programs by providing scholarships, fellowships, faculty salary supple-
ments, and unrestricted funds to specific colleges and the University’s overall academic environment.  As described in 
Note 1 to the financial statements, the North Carolina State University Foundation, Inc. and the NC State Student Aid 
Association, Inc. are considered component units of  the University for reporting purposes and their financial state-
ments are presented separately as part of  the University’s financial statements.  The University’s financial statements 
do not include the assets, liabilities, net assets, or operational transactions of  the other foundations, except for sup-
port from each organization to the University.  This support of  the foundations, excluding amounts from the North 
Carolina State University Foundation, Inc. and the NC State Student Aid Association, Inc. approximated $31,879,638 
for the year ended June 30, 2009.

Nonprofit	Corporation - The Centennial Authority (Authority) was created by the 1995 General Assembly (Senate 
Bill 606) for the purpose of  studying, designing, planning, constructing, owning, promoting, financing and operating 
a regional facility on land owned by the State.  Prior to this act, the General Assembly authorized the construction 
by the University of  a facility to be known as the “Entertainment and Sports Arena” (ESA).  This facility serves as a 
regional sports entertainment center and is available for cultural performances, sporting events and other activities of  
the University or of  other entities (the Centennial Center project).  With the 1995 legislation, the Centennial Center 
project was transferred to the Authority. 
 
The Authority entered into a Ground Lease with the State of  North Carolina to lease land for the ESA for a period 
of  99 years at an annual rent of  $1.  The University entered into a Use Agreement with the Authority.  Both parties 
agreed that the University shall be the primary and preferred user of  all areas of  the ESA.  The University is required 
to pay the greater of  10% of  gross ticket revenues or $46,381 for each men’s and $20,285 for each women’s basketball 
game to compensate the Authority for facility rental and operating expenses.  Rent and expense payments for miscel-
laneous events will be negotiated on an event by event basis based on the availability of  the ESA and the anticipated 
attendance.

In fiscal year 2003 a naming rights agreement was executed to change the name of  the ESA to the “RBC Center.”  As a 
result of  this agreement, the University will receive $13,184,000 over a ten-year period beginning in fiscal year 2003.

In fiscal year 2008, the University entered a Capital Improvement Plan Agreement with the Authority to pay $6,000,000 
in quarterly installments over the next 15 years.
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note 17
CHanGeS In fInanCIaL aCCoUntInG anD RePoRtInG

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the University implemented the following pronouncements issued by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB):

GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations.

GASB Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endowments.

GASB Statement No. 49 requires reporting pollution remediation obligations, which are obligations to address cur-
rent or potential detrimental effects of  existing pollution, including reporting pollution remediation obligations that 
previously may not have been reported.    

GASB Statement No. 52 requires reporting land and other real estate held as investments at fair value.  This statement 
amends GASB Statement 31 which required endowments to report land and other real estate investments at historical 
cost.

In addition, beginning with the year ended June 30, 2009, the University reports federal student aid as nonoperating 
revenue instead of  operating revenue.  This change was the result of  a clarification in the GASB Comprehensive Imple-
mentation Guide. 

note 18
SUBSeQUent eVentS

On November 4, 2009, the University borrowed $10,000,000 through the commercial paper financing program.  
These funds provided financing for current construction projects.

note 19
DISCReteLY PReSenteD ComPonent UnItS

The University’s discretely presented component units use the accounting and reporting standards promulgated by 
FASB.  Selected disclosures from the discretely presented component units audited financial statements follow:

north Carolina State University foundation, Inc.

enDoWment

The Foundation’s endowment consists of  approximately 535 individual funds established for a variety of  purposes 
related to the mission of  the University.  The endowment includes both donor-restricted endowments and funds 
designated by the Foundation Board to function as endowments.  As required by generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples, net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of  
donor-imposed restrictions.  The majority of  the Foundation’s signed endowment gift agreements with donors have 
donor-imposed restrictions which stipulate that principal shall not be used to fund spending.  

Interpretation of  Relevant Law: 

The Uniform Prudent Management of  Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) was adopted in North Carolina as NC 
General Statute 36E effective March 17, 2009.   UPMIFA defines a prudence standard for management and invest-
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ment of  institutional funds.   As a result of  the Foundation’s interpretation of  UPMIFA and the signed endowment 
agreements with donors, the Foundation classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of  gifts 
donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of  subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and  
(c) accumulations to the permanent endowment that are required by the applicable donor gift instrument. The re-
maining portion of  the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is 
classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the foundation’s 
endowment spending policy.  

Funds with Deficiencies:  

From time to time, the fair value of  assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds may fall 
below the level that the donor requires the Foundation to retain as a fund of  perpetual duration.  In accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, deficiencies of  this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets, and were 
$4,781,597 as of  June 30, 2009.  These deficiencies resulted from unfavorable market fluctuations. 
 
Investment Return Objectives and Risk Parameters:

The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a pre-
dictable stream of  funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power 
of  the endowment assets.  Endowment assets include those assets of  donor-restricted funds that the organization 
must hold in perpetuity or for donor-specified periods as well as board-designated funds.  The endowment assets are 
invested through the NC State Investment Fund, Inc. (NCSIF) in a manner that is intended to produce results that 
exceed a 70% S&P 500 Index/30% Barclays Aggregate Bond Index benchmark over rolling five and ten year periods 
while assuming a moderate level of  investment risk.

Spending Policy:

The Foundation has a policy of  appropriating for distribution each year 4.0 % of  its endowment fund’s average mar-
ket value over the prior 20 quarters through the calendar year-end preceding the fiscal year in which the distribution 
is planned.  This is consistent with the foundation’s objective to maintain the purchasing power of  the endowment 
assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide additional real growth through new gifts and in-
vestment return.  However, in declining market conditions, many newer endowments are not able to fund spending at 
the 4.0% level.  In this situation, as prescribed by the donor endowment agreements, the Foundation does not initiate 
or renew spending for the individual endowments affected by declining market conditions until their market value has 
been recovered and exceeds their original gift value.  In establishing the spending policy, the Foundation considered 
the long-term expected return on its endowment.   Spending budgets for fiscal year 2009 were calculated at $2,087,255 
and $869,575 for fiscal year 2010. 
  
Strategies Employed for Achieving Investment Objectives:

For the long term, the primary investment objective for the Fund is to earn a total return (net of  investment and 
custodial fees), within prudent levels of  risk, which is sufficient to maintain in real terms the purchasing power of  the 
Fund and to meet the spending needs of  the University. To meet this investment objective, the Fund invests in various 
asset classes to offer diversification. The purpose of  diversification is to provide reasonable assurance that no single 
security or class of  securities will have a disproportionate impact on the performance of  the total fund. 

The Fund’s investments are diversified both by asset class (e.g. common stocks and fixed income securities) and within 
asset classes (e.g., within common stocks by economic sector, geographic area, industry, quality, and size).  In general, 
the Investment Manager seeks to diversify exposure to all asset classes by hiring multiple managers that use a variety 
of  investment approaches. 
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The following represents changes in endowment net assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009:

        
    temporarily permanently 
   Unrestricted restricted restricted total 

endowment Net assets, beginning of year   $ 3,758,957  $ 31,539,988  $ 37,910,193  $ 73,209,138   
Net asset reclassification based on change in law    (4,781,597)   4,781,597       
endowment net assets after reclassification    (1,022,640)   36,321,585   37,910,193   73,209,138 
investment return: investment income    (37,849)  (156,127)  155,145  (38,831)
Net Depreciation (realized and unrealized)    (3,066,289)  (15,263,829)  (598,615)  (18,928,733)
total investment return    (3,104,138)  (15,419,956)  (443,470)  (18,967,564)
Contributions        1,141,141  1,141,141
appropriations of endowment assets for expenditure    (273,084)  (1,592,062)    (1,865,146)
Change in value of split interest agreements        1,015,810  1,015,810
other Changes:

transfers among funds        1,060,180  1,060,180
transfers to other University-associated entities        (253,866)  (253,866)
endowment Net assets, end of year   $ (4,399,862) $ 19,309,567 $ 40,429,988 $ 55,339,693 

The following represents endowment net asset composition by type of  fund, as of  June 30, 2009:

        
    temporarily permanently 
   Unrestricted restricted restricted total 

Undesignated - Underwater endowments   $ (4,781,597)  $ 19,309,567  $ 40,429,988  $ 54,957,958   
Donor restricted endowment Funds    2,598,649        2,598,649  
board -Designated endowment Funds    (2,216,914)       (2,216,914) 
total Funds   $ (4,399,862) $ 19,309,567 $ 40,429,988 $ 55,339,693

maRKetaBLe SeCURItIeS

Marketable securities at June 30, 2009 consisted of:

 Cost Fair value
bNy Mellon - liquidity DireCt $ 652,985 $ 652,985
NC State investment Fund, inc.  59,332,450   48,061,096 
bNy Mellon - trusts  5,617,629   5,462,401 
academy Centennial Fund, llC  1,037,900  30,608 
Citicorp trust bank  468,075   389,026 
 $ 67,109,039  $ 54,596,116 

Note that the $652,985 in BNY Mellon - Liquidity DIRECT is included in cash in the financial statement presenta-
tion.
Marketable securities held by NC State Investment Fund, Inc. at June 30, 2009 consisted of  the 

 Cost Fair value

limited partnerships               $ 59,332,450           $      48,061,096 
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The Foundation’s investment in the NC State Investment Fund, Inc. (“Fund”) represents approximately 18.69%  of  
the member equity of  the Fund at June 30, 2009.  The Fund’s net assets were primarily invested with UNC Manage-
ment Company as of  June 30, 2009 and were valued at approximately $259,010,000.

The Foundation’s investment in the Academy Centennial Fund, LLC, represents approximately 11.0% of  the member 
capital of  the Academy Centennial Fund, LLC at June 30, 2009.  The Academy Centennial Fund, LLC’s net assets 
were approximately $289,000 at December 31, 2008 (latest date available), and consisted primarily of  common and 
preferred stock and convertible debt.

The Foundation’s investments held by BNY Mellon primarily consist of  bond mutual funds and equity mutual 
funds.

The Foundation’s investments held by Citicorp Trust Bank primarily consist of  common equity securities.

The Foundation invests in various investment securities.  Investment securities are exposed to various risks such as 
interest rate, market, and credit risks.  Due to the level of  risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at 
least reasonably possible that changes in the values of  investment securities will occur in the near term and that such 
changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the statements of  financial position.

faIR VaLUe meaSURement

Effective June 30, 2009, the Foundation adopted Statement of  Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value 
Measurements (SFAS 157), which provides a framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting 
principles, SFAS 157 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants on the measurement date.  SFAS 157 requires that valuation techniques maximize the use 
of  observable inputs and minimize the use of  unobservable inputs.  SFAS 157 also establishes a fair value hierarchy, 
which prioritizes the valuation inputs into three broad levels. 

The three-tier hierarchy of  inputs is summarized in the three broad levels listed below:

Level 1 – quoted prices in active markets for identical investments

Level 2 – other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar investments, interest rates, credit 
risks, etc.)

Level 3 – significant unobservable inputs (including the fund’s own assumptions in determining the fair value of  in-
vestments)

To measure fair value, there are three general valuation techniques that may be used, as described below:

A) Market approach - Uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical 
or comparable assets or liabilities. Prices may be indicated by pricing guides, sale transactions, market trades, or other 
sources; 

B) Cost approach - Based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the service capacity of  an asset 
(replacement cost); and

C) Income approach - Uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based on cur-
rent market expectations about the future amounts (includes present value techniques and option-pricing models).  
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Net present value is an income approach where a stream of  expected cash flows is discounted at an appropriate mar-
ket interest rate.

Assets itemized below were measured at fair value during the year using market and income approaches.  The market 
approach was used for level 2 and the income approach was used for level 3.  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               total 
                                                                                           level 1                                 level 2                             level 3                                        Fair value   
bNy Mellon - liquidity DireCt                      $     652,985              $                           $                            $              652,985 
NC State investment Fund, inc.                                                                                                               48,061,096  48,061,096 
bNy Mellon - trusts                                                                                                   5,462,401  5,462,401   
academy Centennial Fund, llC                                                                                                                             30,608  30,608  
Citicorp trust bank                                                                                                        389,026  389,026   
                                                                 $       652,985                       5,851,427              48,091,704  54,596,116  

The following is a reconciliation of the investments in which significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) were used 
in determining value:

 NC State academy
 investment Centennial
 Fund Fund, llC
beginning balance as of June 30, 2008 $ 64,919,115 $ 65,278
Unrealized loss on investments  (8,302,965)  (34,670)
realized loss on investments  (7,373,792)  
Net investment  (986,491)  
Net transfer in/and or out of level 3  (194,771)  

ending balance as of June 30. 2009 $ 48,061,096 $ 30,608

PLeDGeS ReCeIVaBLe

Pledges receivable are stated at their present value, estimated by discounting the future cash flows using Federal Re-
serve rates of  return, and are as follows:
receivable in less than one year $ 6,084,828
receivable in one to Five years  11,925,468 
receivable in greater than Five years  234,412 
     total gross pledges receivable  18,244,708 
less allowance for Uncollectible pledges  253,000
less Unamortized Discount  1,047,680
Net pledges receivable $ 16,944,028 
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nC State StUDent aID aSSoCIatIon, InC.

ConCentRatIonS of CReDIt RISK

The Association maintains cash balances at several financial institutions located in Raleigh, North Carolina, and in 
several brokerage accounts located in North Carolina. The balances in the financial institution are insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000 at June 30, 2009. The balances in the brokerage accounts are 
insured at varying amounts. The Association's uninsured cash balances totaled $20,960,339 at June 30, 2009.

PLeDGeS ReCeIVaBLe

The Association carries its pledges receivable at cost less a discount for pledges receivable due in more than a year 
and less an allowance for doubtful accounts. On a periodic basis, the Association evaluates its receivables and estab-
lishes an allowance for doubtful accounts, based on history of  past write-offs and current credit conditions.

Pledges receivable at June 30, 2009, are as follows:

pledges receivable $ 46,236,525 
less allowance for Uncollectible pledges  2,289,703
less Discount on pledge  10,543,419
  33,403,403 
less Current portion  8,075,957
pledges Due after one year $ 25,327,446 

Pledges receivable due in more than one year are reflected at the present value of  estimated future cash flows using a 
discount rate of  6%.

receivable in less than one year $ 8,477,720
receivable in one to Five years  23,693,714 
receivable in greater than Five years  14,065,091 
     total gross pledges receivable  46,236,525 
less allowance For Uncollectible pledges  2,289,703
less Unamortized Discount  10,543,419
Net pledges receivable $ 33,403,403 

At June 30, 2009, Goal Line Drive pledges totaling $13,415,591 and Wolfpack Pride pledges totaling $1,772,356 were 
pledged as collateral for the Goal Line Drive bond payable and the Vaughn Towers bond payable.   These pledge totals 
are reflected at the present value of  estimated future cash flows less an allowance for uncollectible pledges.
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InVeStmentS

The Association held the following investments at June 30, 2009:
 historical Cost Market value

U.S. government obligations $ 3,643,191  $ 3,732,525 
Marketable equity Securities  13,119,770   10,747,381 
other Marketable Debt Securities  3,350,704   3,446,372 
partnership interests  3,701,819   3,515,275 
Mutual Funds  1,755,780   1,363,390 
 total $ 25,571,264  $ 22,804,943 

Investment income consists of the following:

                 

interest $ 379,622
Dividends  419,007 
realized loss on Sale of investments  (1,993,525) 
Unrealized loss on investments  (1,961,554)
investment expenses  (200,499)
 total $ (3,356,949)

LonG-teRm DeBt

Bond Indenture--Goal Line Drive

The Association, through the North Carolina Capital Facilities Finance Agency issued $40,000,000 of  bonds during 
2002. The bonds are secured by the Goal Line Drive pledges, Wolfpack Pride Campaign pledges, and the Medlin 
property. The bonds are also secured by approximately $2,000,000 in scoreboard revenues to be received from NCSU 
through 2012. The proceeds from these bonds were used for the Carter-Finley Stadium expansion and improvements. 
The bonds pay interest monthly at a variable rate equal to .35% plus the higher of  the federal funds rate plus ½% or 
Bank of  America's publicly announced  prime rate.   
      
The Association also must pay Bank of  America a letter of  credit fee. This fee, paid quarterly, is 1.5% of  the outstand-
ing debt balance. The Association must also pay annually $17,000 of  agency and $5,000 of  trustee fees. The Associa-
tion pays a remarketing fee annually to Bank of  America. This fee is .1% of  the outstanding debt balance. The bond 
matures in 2012.

Bond Indentures--Wolfpack Club Student Housing foundation

The Housing Foundation, through the North Carolina Capital Facilities Finance Agency issued a $23,710,000 Series 
2003A bond and a $1,235,000 Series 2003B bond in June 2003. The proceeds from these bonds were used to con-
struct a residence hall for NCSU students and student athletes. The bonds pay interest monthly at variable rates. The 
Series 2003A bonds pay interest based on a variable rate established weekly by Wachovia Bank, remarketing agent. The 
Series 2003B bonds pay interest based on a variable rate established monthly by the remarketing agent. The Housing 
Foundation must pay a letter of  credit fee quarterly to  Wachovia Bank. The current fee, paid quarterly, is 1.50% of  
the outstanding balance. The Housing Foundation pays a remarketing fee semi-annually to Wachovia Bank. This fee 
is .125% of  the outstanding balance. The Series 2003A bonds mature in July 2035. The Series 2003B bonds mature 
in July 2009.

The Housing Foundation has entered into a swap contract for a majority of  this debt to hedge against interest rate 
fluctuations. The swap was issued at market terms so that it had no value at its inception. The carrying amount of  
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the swap has been adjusted to its fair value at June 30, 2009, which, because of  changes in forecasted levels of  interest 
rates, resulted in reporting a liability of  $2,030,856 at June 30, 2009 for the fair value of  the net payments forecasted 
under the swap. The swap liability is classified as noncurrent since the Association does not intend to settle it within 
the next twelve months.

Bond Indentures--Vaughn towers

The Association, through the North Carolina Capital Facilities Finance Agency issued a $15,855,000 Series 2004A 
bond and a $17,685,000 Series 2004B bond in November 2004. The proceeds from these bonds were used to con-
struct Vaughn Towers at Carter-Finley Stadium. The bonds pay interest monthly at variable rates. The Series 2004A 
bond pays interest based on a variable rate established weekly by Wachovia Bank, remarketing agent. The Series 2004B 
bond pays interest based on a variable rate established weekly by Banc of  America Securities, LLC, remarketing agent. 
The Association must pay a 2% quarterly letter of  credit fee. The Association pays an annual remarketing fee of  .10% 
of  the outstanding bonds to the remarketing agents. The Series 2004A bond matures in September 2024. The Series 
2004B bond matures in September 2018.

The Association has entered into swap contracts for a majority of  this debt to hedge against interest rate fluctuations. 
The swaps were issued at market terms so that they had no value at their inception. The carrying amount of  the swaps 
have been adjusted to their fair value at June 30, 2009, which, because of  changes in forecasted levels of  interest rates, 
resulted in reporting a liability of  $1,292,784 at June 30, 2009 for the fair value of  the net payments forecasted under 
the swap. The swap liability is classified as noncurrent since the Association does not intend to settle it within the next 
twelve months.

notes Payable—north end Zone

During the year ended June 30, 2008, the Association converted the bank lines of  credit with Wachovia Bank and 
Bank of  America into notes payable. Certain endowment investment accounts serve as collateral on these notes.  The 
note payable to Wachovia Bank has an annual principal payment requirement of  $120,960 plus interest at LIBOR 
(1.6776% at June 30, 2009) plus 1.5% through November 2012, at which time the remaining principal is due.  The 
note payable to Bank of  America has an annual principal payment requirement of  $130,786 plus interest at LIBOR 
(1.6776% at June 30, 2009) plus 1.5% through November 2012, at which time the remaining principal is due.

The Association has entered into swap contracts for a majority of  this debt to hedge against interest rate fluctuations. 
The swaps were issued at market terms so that they had no value at their inception. The carrying amount of  the swaps 
have been adjusted to their fair market value at June 30, 2009, which because of  changes in forecasted levels of  inter-
est rates, resulted in reporting a liability of  $335,748 at June 30, 2009 for the fair value of  the net payments forecasted 
under the swap. The swap liability is classified as noncurrent since the Association does not intend to settle it within 
the next twelve months.

The adjustments on the value of  the swap contracts resulted in an unrealized loss of  $2,276,310 which is reported in 
the Statements of  Activities for the year ended June 30, 2009.
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Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

2010 $ 5,741,746
2011  5,896,746
2012  5,976,746
2013  2,792,944
2014  1,885,000
thereafter  38,070,000
 $ 60,363,182

LetteRS of CReDIt

Pursuant to the issuance of  the Goal Line Drive bonds payable, the Association obtained an irrevocable letter of  
credit in the amount of  $40,460,274. The letter of  credit will remain in effect until March 15, 2010. 

Pursuant to the issuance of  the Wolfpack Club Student Housing Foundation bonds payable, the Association obtained 
an irrevocable letter of  credit. The original letter of  credit expired June 9, 2006, and has been extended until Novem-
ber 24, 2009.

Pursuant to the issuance of  the Wolfpack Towers bonds payable, the Association obtained two irrevocable letters of  
credit in the total amount of  $33,976,814. The letters of  credit will remain in effect until March 15, 2010.

CaSH ReQUIReD foR GoaL LIne DRIVe BonD matURItIeS anD feeS

The administrative agent requires that contributions and revenues received after March 2002 for the Goal Line Drive 
Campaign and the Pride Campaign be placed in separate bank accounts. These monies can only be used for principal 
payments, interest payments, and loan fees. At June 30, 2009, cash held for bond obligations totaled $10,340,540. The 
administrative expenses for the Goal Line Drive Campaign are being paid for by the Pride Campaign and the Associa-
tion's operating fund. These expenses will be reimbursed once the debt has been retired. At June 30, 2009, the amount 
due Wolfpack Pride from Goal Line Drive was $8,571,772 and the amount due to the Association's operating fund 
from Goal Line Drive was $11,910,470.

Long-term debt consists of  the following at June 30, 2009:
goal line Drive bond indenture $ 12,220,000 
wolfpack Club Student housing Foundation – Series 2003a  22,780,000 
wolfpack Club Student housing Foundation – Series 2003b  290,000 
vaughn towers project – Series 2004a  15,855,000 
vaughn towers project – Series 2004b  7,435,000 
Note payable – wachovia bank  968,687 
Note payable – bank of america  814,495 
  60,363,182 
less amount Classified as Current liability  5,741,746
amount Due after one year $ 54,621,436
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faIR VaLUe meaSURementS

The following table provides information by level for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, as defined 
by SFAS No. 157, on a recurring basis:

   Quoted prices in Significant     
   active Markets for other   
   identical assets observable inputs   
  Fair value (level 1) (level 2) 

assets
 investments $ 22,804,943 $ 19,289,668  $ 3,515,275   
liabilities
        Swap Contract            

 wolfpack Club Student housing  2,030,856    2,030,856      
 vaugh towers  1,292,784     1,292,784      

 North end Zone  335,748     335,748   
total liabilities $ 3,659,388 $  $ 3,659,388  

Loan CoVenant

The Housing Foundation is required to maintain a debt service ratio of  at least 1.20 to 1.00 in order to be in com-
pliance with the terms of  the bond agreements. At June 30, 2009 the Housing Foundation was in default in regards 
to this covenant. The Housing Foundation received a waiver from Wachovia Bank in regards to this loan covenant 
default for the year ended June 30, 2009.
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ratio of Net gain in endowment assets
ten year history
For the year ended June 30
(in thousands)

endowment assets - Market value

          Fiscal                                                                                                               end beginning   yearly
           year                                                                                                             of year of year   Change              ratio

     1999-2000                                                                                                    133,847  123,849  9,998                       8.07
     2000-2001                                                                                                    135,427  133,847  1,580                       1.18 
     2001-2002                                                                                                    131,241  135,427  (4,186)                     (3.09)
     2002-2003                                                                                                    119,947  131,241  (11,294)                      (8.61)
     2003-2004                                                                                132,716  119,947  12,769                     10.65
     2004-2005                                                                                139,728  132,716  7,012                       5.28
     2005-2006                                                                                155,116  139,728  15,388                      11.01
     2006-2007                                                                                173,193  155,116  18,077                     11.65
     2007-2008                                                                                161,208  173,193  (11,985)                     (6.92)    
    2008-2009                                                                                129,619  161,208  (31,589)                   (19.60)

revenue bond Coverage
ten year history
 For the year ended June 30
(in thousands)

  gross Direct Net revenue
 Fiscal operating operating available for    Coverage
 year revenues expenses Debt Service principal interest total ratio

 1999-2000  83,740  63,452  20,288  4,770  4,910  9,680 2.10
 2000-2001  89,910 71,237 18,673 5,378 4,800 10,178 1.83
 2001-2002  94,447 74,828 19,619 6,234 4,006 10,240 1.92
 2002-2003  100,011 78,728 21,283 5,162 2,895 8,057 2.64
 2003-2004  102,265 83,070 19,195 5,230 2,573 7,803 2.46
 2004-2005  107,712 88,522 19,190 4,897 2,076 6,973 2.75
 2005-2006  105,333 86,092 19,241 4,503 1,835 6,338 3.04
 2006-2007  107,220 81,337 25,883 3,945 1,600 5,545 4.67
 2007-2008  96,438   65,895  30,543  3,915  1,273  5,188   5.89
  2008-2009  5,941 - 5,941 785 108 893 6.65  

revenue bond Coverage calculations are for the University’s revenue bonds secured by specific revenue streams and do not include 
University bonds secured by available Funds. 
the University began using available Funds to secure borrowings in Fiscal year 2002.

available Funds
For the year ended June 30
(in thousands)

 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

total Unrestricted revenue $ 704,910 $ 769,484 $ 838,360 $ 933,625  911,049
 less:
 State appropriations  (366,633)  (399,961)  (430,923)  (487,744)  (448,754)
 tuition and Fees  (112,114)  (121,512)  (131,256)  (142,173)  (154,521)
 Specific revenue Debt
 Service requirements  (55,199)  (58,530)   (58,165)  (41,159)  (17,783)
 plus:
     beginning Unrestricted Net assets  79,374  93,941  95,211  116,201  143,155
 total available Funds $ 250,338 $ 283,422 $ 313,227 $ 378,750  433,146
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admissions, enrollment and Degree Statistics
ten year history of Fall enrollment

(headcount)

Freshman admissions 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

applied 12,227 12,040 11,835 12,153 12,867 13,947 13,620 15,500 16,437 17,661
accepted 7,555 7,824 7,789 7,178 7,947 8,186 9,039 9,470 9,869 10,371
enrolled 3,553 3,748 3,831 3,628 3,851 3,847 4,253 4,559 4,791 4,669

Sat total 1179 1185 1175 1193 1195 1193 1183 1177 1171 1176
Sat verbal 577 578 573 578 580 580 575 569 568 569
Sat Math 602 607 602 615 615 613 608 608 603 607

high School gpa 3.86 3.94 3.91 4.00 4.05 4.09 4.07 4.11 4.12 4.17
h.S. valedictorians 75 99 89 72 88 75 70 77 70 67
h.S. Salutatorians 67 80 75 86 72 77 67 65 67 57

transfer admissions

applied 2,948 2,932 2,985 3,308 3,149 3,819 3,478 3,990 3,976 3,766 
accepted 1,547 1,435 1,447 1,500 1,340 1,330 1,305 1,413 1,358 1,410
enrolled 1,085 1,091 1,063 1,116 1,052 1,042 1,027 1,075 1,029 1,089

graduate admissions

applied 6,278 7,096 6,925 7,951 8,597 7,610 7,580 8,440 7,882 8,119
accepted 2,252 2,371 2,715 2,343 2,797 2,875 3,050 3,166 3,330 3,533
enrolled 1,471 1,566 1,779 1,465 1,829 1,894 1,929 1,914 2,100 2,284

(percentage of total applications)

Freshman admissions 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

accepted 61.8% 65.0% 65.8% 59.1% 61.8% 58.7% 66.4% 61.1% 60.0% 58.7%
enrolled 29.1% 31.1% 32.4% 29.9% 29.9% 27.6% 31.2% 29.4% 29.1% 26.4%

transfer admissions

accepted 52.5% 48.9% 48.5% 45.3% 42.6% 34.8% 37.5% 35.4% 34.2% 37.4%
enrolled 36.8% 37.2% 35.6% 33.7% 33.4% 27.3% 29.5% 26.9% 25.9% 28.9%

graduate admissions

accepted 35.9% 33.4% 39.2% 29.5% 32.5% 37.8% 40.2% 37.5% 42.2% 43.5%
enrolled 23.4% 22.1% 25.7% 18.4% 21.3% 24.9% 25.4% 22.7% 26.6% 28.1%

(Degrees Conferred)

 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

bachelors 3,703 3,690 3,836 3,941 4,338 4,548 4,566 4,478 4,558 4,571
Masters 1,115 1,168 1,189 1,179 1,501 1,403 1,332 1,485 1,457 1,507
Doctoral 357 317 306 300 322 338 343 369 411 328
First professional (DvM) 77 73 70 75 73 76 73 75 75 74
professional      1 - - - - 
total 5,252 5,248 5,401 5,495 6,234 6,366 6,314 6,407 6,501 6,480



82 2009 North CaroliNa State UNiverSity FiNaNCial report

admissions, enrollment and Degree Statistics
ten year history of Fall enrollment

(headcount)

 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Undergraduate 19,429 19,591 19,839 20,146 20,314 20,302 20,546 21,438 22,070 22,874
graduate 5,390 5,519 5,920 5,847 5,974 6,279 6,432 6,481 6,826 7,243
lifelong education 3,192 3,509 3,527 3,644 3,566 3,376 3,171 3,211 2,906 2,755

Full-time 20,496 20,981 21,891 22,231 22,587 22,711 23,116 24,026 24,989 25,940
part-time 7,515 7,638 7,395 7,406 7,267 7,246 7,033 7,104 6,813 6,932

Male 16,257 16,517 16,782 16,952 16,937 17,011 17,024 17,411 17,732 18,344
Female 11,754 12,102 12,504 12,685 12,917 12,946 13,125 13,719 14,070 14,528

white 21,968 22,196 22,406 22,829 23,064 23,021 23,227 23,593 23,766 24,279
african-american 2,759 2,823 2,849 2,864 2,920 2,899 2,750 2,773 2,739 2,809
asian 1,329 1,358 1,443 1,551 1,603 1,592 1,397 1,473 1,507 1,509
hispanic 467 508 558 554 587 680 669 721 774 790
other 1,488 1,734 2,030 1,839 1,680 1,765 2,106 2,570 3,016 3,485

in-state 24,471 24,838 25,271 25,787 26,012 26,012 26,139 26,831 27,293 27,850
out-of-state 2,235 2,240 2,175 2,198 2,337 2,364 2,418 2,582 2,573 2,802
international 1,305 1,541 1,840 1,652 1,505 1,581 1,592 1,717 1,936 2,220

total enrollment 28,011 28,619 29,286 29,637 29,854 29,957 30,149 31,130 31,802 32,872

(percentage of total)

Undergraduate 69.4% 68.4% 67.8% 68.0% 68.0% 67.8% 68.2% 68.9% 69.4% 69.6%
graduate 19.2% 19.3% 20.2% 19.7% 20.0% 21.0% 21.3% 20.8% 21.5% 22.0%
lifelong education 11.4% 12.3% 12.0% 12.3% 12.0% 11.2% 10.5% 10.3% 9.1% 8.4%

Full-time 73.2% 73.3% 74.7% 75.0% 75.7% 75.8% 76.7% 77.2% 78.6% 78.9%
part-time 26.8% 26.7% 25.3% 25.0% 24.3% 24.2% 23.3% 22.8% 21.4% 21.1%

Male 58.0% 57.7% 57.3% 57.2% 56.7% 56.8% 56.5% 55.9% 55.8% 55.8%
Female 42.0% 42.3% 42.7% 42.8% 43.3% 43.2% 43.5% 44.1% 44.2% 44.2%

white 78.4% 77.6% 76.5% 77.0% 77.2% 76.8% 77.1% 75.8% 74.7% 73.9%
african-american 9.9% 9.9% 9.7% 9.7% 9.8% 9.7% 9.1% 8.9% 8.6% 8.5%
asian 4.7% 4.7% 4.9% 5.2% 5.4% 5.3% 4.6% 4.7% 4.7% 4.6%
hispanic 1.7% 1.8% 2.0% 1.9% 2.0% 2.3% 2.2% 2.3% 2.4% 2.4%
other 5.3% 6.0% 6.9% 6.2% 5.6% 5.9% 7.0% 8.3% 9.6% 10.6%

in-state 87.4% 86.8% 86.3% 87.0% 87.1% 86.8% 86.7% 86.2% 85.8% 84.7%
out-of-state 8.0% 7.8% 7.4% 7.4% 7.9% 7.9% 8.0% 8.3% 8.1% 8.5%
international 4.6% 5.4% 6.3% 5.6% 5.0% 5.3% 5.3% 5.5% 6.1% 6.8%
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admissions, enrollment and Degree Statistics
Five year Comparison of enrollment by level and College
Student enrollment, Fall Semester

 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Undergraduate
provost’s office     35  
agriculture and life Sciences 3,674 3,749 3,920 4,104 4,305  
Design 494 494 483 484 498
education 466 532 633 751 804
engineering 5,477 5,400 5,627 5,773 5,927
Natural resources 953 957 978 1,077 1,123
humanities and Social Sciences 3,895 3,988 4,057 3,828 3,946
Management 2,279 2,190 2,308 2,397 2,558
physical and Mathematical Sciences 835 849 906 920 869
textiles 548 622 733 866 883
University Undesignated 1 1,329 1,413 1,417 1,496 1,531
agriculture institute 352 352 376 374 395
lifelong education 2,452 2,333 2,292 2,075 1,867
total Undergraduate 22,754 22,879 23,730 24,145 24,741

total Fte Undergraduate 2   19,886   19,954   20,684 21,181 21,824

graduate
provost’s office 0 0 0 23 35
agriculture and life Sciences 787 848 828 845 892
Design 193 188 202 217 238
education 890 932 919 947 987
engineering 1,779 1,795 1,840 2,060 2,224
graduate School 3 0 1 2 0
Natural resources 205 200 205 209 240 
humanities and Social Sciences 712 763 775 761 795
Management 496 461 497 543 551
physical and Mathematical Sciences 685 724 702 685 723
textiles 143 137 131 142 160
veterinary Medicine 386 384 381 392 398
lifelong education 924 838 919 831 888
total graduate 7,203 7,270 7,400 7,657 8,131

total Fte graduate 2 5,039 5,059 5,044 5,253 5,350
total headcount 29,957 30,149 31,130 31,802 32,872
total Fte enrollment 2 24,925 25,013 25,728 26,434 27,174
percentage of Students (Fte) 13.5% 13.8% 13.8% 14.1% 15.1%
from outside state 2

1. includes First year College.
2. on-Campus regular term Fte enrollment
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Fall enrollment
Freshman admissions by year

Sat Scores
Freshman admissions by year
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Student profile
Fall 2008
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Faculty by rank

Full time Faculty by tenure

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700

Professor Assoc 
Professor

Asst 
Professor

Instructor Lecturer Not Ranked

Fall 2007 Fall 2008

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

Tenured Tenure Track Not on Track Retired

Fall 2007 Fall 2008



872009 North CaroliNa State UNiverSity FiNaNCial report

This page intentionally left blank.



88 2009 North CaroliNa State UNiverSity FiNaNCial report



892009 North CaroliNa State UNiverSity FiNaNCial report



90 2009 North CaroliNa State UNiverSity FiNaNCial report

ELECTRONIC AVAILABILITY:  This document is available online at www.fis.ncsu.edu/controller/financial_reports.
We printed minimal copies of the report to maintain our sustainable principles.  Please think twice before printing it. 

PRINT AVAILABILITY:  100 copies of this public document were printed at a cost of $1,645 or $16.45 per copy.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT:  NC State University is dedicated to equality of opportunity.  The University 
does not condone discrimination against students, employees, or applicants in any form.  NC State commits itself to posi-
tive action to secure equal opportunity regardless of race, color, creed, national origin, religion, sex, age, or disability.  In 
addition, NC State welcomes all persons without regard to sexual orientation. 
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